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To produce Automotive Wheels and Allied
Products of International Quality Standard and 

contribute towards national economy
by import substitution, exports, taxation,

employment and consistently compensate the
stake holders through stable returns.
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PROFILE OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi
Chairman (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi is an Non Executive Director and he is a Chartered Accountant and a
fellow of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and Pakistan. He
carries a vast experience of teaching, management of large scale industries, investment and
financing. He has been associated with National Investment Trust (NIT) and has served on the
Board of various companies as a nominee Director of NIT. He has attended various seminars and
lectures in the process of continuing professional development and have been associated with
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) Committee for Technical Services and also
served as a member of Quality Assurance Board of ICAP.

He is a Certified Director and had completed Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Mr. Razak H. M. Bengali
Managing Director / CEO (Executive Director)

Mr. Razak Haji Mohammed Bengali belongs to an industrialist family which has been in business
since 1947. After graduating in First Class First Position in commerce from Karachi, he joined
Siemens and proceeded to Germany where he received business education in German language
and passed the examination of Industrial Businessmen (equivalent to MBA).

After coming back from Germany, he remained associated with his family business for about 30
years. At present, he is the Chief Executive of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (an engineering unit
producing automotive steel wheel rims), which position he has been holding since July, 1998.

He has been the Chairman of Filament Yarn Manufacturers Association, and Vice President of the
Employers Federation of Pakistan.

Also, he has been the President and Vice President of Pakistan German Business Forum (PGBF)
for a long number of years. He made this institution active and vibrant which has the recognition
and support of various Government organizations and the business people in Pakistan and in
Germany.

He holds the membership of the following social bodies:

1. Member and Past President of Karachi Gymkhana
2. Member of Karachi Boat Club
3. Member of Rotary Club of Karachi Continental
4. Member of Defence Authority Country & Golf Club

Also, he has participated in various international seminars, and has widely traveled around the
globe. Besides English and Urdu, he is well-versed in German language.
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Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri
Director Marketing / Business Development (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri is a Graduate from Sindh University. After graduation, he
proceeded to Saudi Arabia and started his business of trading, imports and distribution of food
items from 1982 and captured a larger market share in this field in Saudi Arabia.

He came back to Pakistan and set up a food processing industry with the name of Zaiqa Food
Industries in the year 1995. The unit is engaged in processing of spices and other foods items and
in exports of the same to the gulf countries, the Middle East, the UK, the USA and the Canada.
In the year 1998, he took over with the association of his friends the management of Baluchistan
Wheels Limited, and since then he is involved in managing and running the company with
dedication and hard-work. He is a man of wisdom and possesses business acumen.

He has been the member of Managing Committee of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of
Commerce & Industry. He has also served as the Chairman of Pakistan Association of Automotive
Parts & Accessories Manufacturers (PAAPAM) and played an active role for the growth of
Vending Industry as well as for the Auto Industry in the Country.

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani joined Baluchistan Wheels Ltd as Chief Operating Officer (C.O.O) in
the year 1996 and took the responsibility of planning and production. He has been instrumental in
the balancing modernization and expansion of various Plant facilities at BWL. He has over 30
years of experience in the field of manufacturing, marketing & administration. He has been
associated with various business groups. He is certified Director and had successfully completed
Director’s Training Programme from the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).

Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah
Independent Director

Syed Zubair Ahmad Shah is MBA from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Karachi and
MPhil in Economics from Glasgow University UK. He did post graduate diploma in General
Management of State Enterprises with distinction from the Research Institute for Development
Sciences, Netherlands. In addition he has attended and qualified various short international
seminars/courses in the field of Privatization, Development Policies, Corporate Planning and
Performance Evaluation etc. He joined NIT on May 21, 2010 as Controller of Branches. He have
been representing NIT as Director on the Board of various Companies since 1999.Presently he
represents NIT as Director on the Board of Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. He is an independent
Director on the Board of Baluchistan Wheels Ltd.
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Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi
Independent Director

Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi has over 30 years of versatile experience in the fields of
Investment-Banking, Feasibility Studies of projects and its implementation by raising equity &
debt, Leasing, Finance and Corporate affairs and Manufacturing. He had been associated with
Baluchistan Wheels Ltd (BWL) for over 15 years in various capacities as company secretary,
Head of Finance & Director on the Board. He retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015
and is very well versed with the Auto Vending and Assembly Industry. He is a Commerce
Graduate and an MBA besides he is also a member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Managers.

Mr. Muhammad Javed
Independent Director

Mr. Muhammad Javed is a Mechanical Engineer and life time member of Pakistan Engineering
Council. He had foreign training in Japan and visits to China, Taiwan, Malaysia, Netherlands,
Turkey and India for technical agreement, selection /testing and development of plant machinery
and equipment.
He has over 40 years’ experience of managing engineering and automobile wheel industry. He
retired from the Baluchistan Wheels Limited in 2015 after serving 31years at various positions,
Head of Technical Division and Director on Board and executed projects of Plant Expansion
&Modernization.

Mrs. Saba Nadeem
Non-Executive / Female Director

Mrs. Saba Nadeem belongs to a business family. She has done A 'Levels. Also, she has done
Diploma in Interior Designing from the Indus Valley School of Arts, and remained involved in
activities like Fabric Painting and Glass Painting. She has been a teacher in a grammar school in
Clifton, Karachi.

She is a Certified Director and had completed Director Education Certification Program from the
Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP).

She has developed a special interest in being involved in business and commerce and, therefore,
she has chosen to be on the Board of Directors of Baluchistan Wheels Limited.

Mr. Aamir Amin
Independent Director

Mr. Aamir Amin is at present Head of Finance of National Investment Trust Limited. Mr. Amin is a
Chartered Accountant by profession from Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)
with training from Ernst & Young – Pakistan. He is also a Certified Information Systems Auditor
(CISA). He has work experience of over 19 years, substantially in financial services industry and
also represents NIT as Nominee Director on various Boards.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali
Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Siddique Misri
Director Marketing / Business Development

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani
Chief Operating Officer

(Executive Director)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Yunus Ladha
Chief Financial Officer / Sr. General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Yasin Ladha is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) & a fellow member of the Institute of Cost & Management Accountants of
Pakistan (ICMAP). Besides this he is also fellow member of Chartered Secretaries, Certified
Internal Control Auditor (USA) and CPA (UK).

He is also a member of the Economic Advisory & Government Relationship Committee of the
ICAP. He has over thirty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation &
Corporate Affairs.

He has worked in various multinational / public listed companies. He is associated with the
Company since 1996. Presently, he is CFO / Senior General Manager (Finance).

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak
General Manager (Finance) / Deputy CFO

Mr. Fareed Abdul Razzak has done his EMBA from Karachi School of Business
Leadership (KSBL), he is also MBA (Finance) and MCS. He is associated with the
company since year 2000 and currently working as General Manager Finance / Deputy
CFO.

He has vast experience in the field of Accounts & Finance, Treasury, Banking Matters  
& Corporate Affairs. 
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Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary / Deputy General Manager (Finance)

Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP). He has over twenty years of experience in the field of Finance & Accounts, Taxation,
Internal Audit & Corporate Affairs. He has worked in various public listed companies. At present,
he is working as Company Secretary / Deputy General Manage (Finance).

He is associated with the company since 2007. In addition he has attended various seminars
/courses / conferences on Finance / Taxation / Audit / Corporate & Financial Reporting /Budget
etc.

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani
Deputy General Manager (Supply & Services)

Mr. Kumail Irfan Ghani completed his BSc (Hons) Accounting from University of Hull,
England and MSc Banking and International Finance from Cass Business School,
London, England.

He has previously worked at Standard Chartered and NIB Bank. Mr. Kumail is a
progressive minded individual who joined us in 2014. Currently he is working as Head
of Supply & Services Department.

Mr. Atif Iqbal
Chief Internal Auditor

Mr. Atif Iqbal has done his MBA in Finance. He is associated with the Company since
2004 and currently working as Chief Internal Auditor / Senior Manager. He has over
eighteen years of experience in the field of Audit, Finance, Taxation, Treasury &
Banking Matters and Corporate Affairs.

Syed Pervez Akhtar
General Manager (H.R / I.R)

Syed Pervez Akhtar has done his MBA in Human Resource Management and is also
a Law Graduate.

He carries working experience of 25 years in the areas of Human Resource
Management and Industrial Relations in reputed organizations such as Kohinoor
Chemical Co. (Tibet Group), S.G. Fiber Limited and Pak Hy-Oils Limited.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Rupees in '000'

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property,plant & equipment 909,670 946,396 963,138 950,050 414,291 449,581 

Long-term loans & advances 4,260 7,753 6,138 6,176 3,826 3,415 

Long-term deposits 5,414 8,579 7,649 7,709 4,418 4,607 

919,344 962,728 976,925 963,935 422,535 457,603 

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose tools 32,625 36,505 39,729 37,804 39,345 50,840 

Stock-in-trade 555,749 649,130 539,764 343,671 413,575 525,105 

Trade debts 212,528 110,408 258,317 264,625 108,542 144,187 

Loans and advances 61,973 38,408 41,073 32,004 16,331 15,914 

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 410 778 1,433 556 1,709 2,347 

Other receivables 6,788 13,951 792 29,986 7,010 431 

Short term investments 696,589 514,904 523,766 550,573 333,906 102,827 

Sales tax refundable - net - 12,049 - 595 1,826 -

Taxation - net - - - 32,690 103,518 129,302 

Bank balances 33,015 18,772 66,034 19,320 60,362 44,994 

1,599,677 1,394,905 1,470,908 1,311,824 1,086,124 1,015,947 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,519,021 2,357,633 2,447,833 2,275,759 1,508,659 1,473,550 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Share Capital 133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343 133,343 

Revaluation surplus on property,plant and equipment 579,075 579,075 579,075 538,518 - -

Reserves 1,404,432 1,343,553 1,329,352 1,249,035 1,161,311 1,154,676 

2,116,850 2,055,971 2,041,770 1,920,896 1,294,654 1,288,019 

Non Current Liabilities

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 5,181 13,768 13,949 23,477 6,330 989 

Long term loan - - - 10,418 30,849 -

Long term deposits 978 1,115 896 1,405 982 2,010 

Long term Government grant - - - 91 1,923 -

GIDC Payable - - - 1,311 - -

Deferred taxation 29,723 31,485 34,972 33,694 33,292 38,250 

35,882 46,368 49,817 70,396 73,376 41,249 

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 309,008 187,926 183,306 240,350 116,995 122,709 

Unclaimed dividend 9,689 8,184 7,087 6,065 5,913 6,846 

Current portion of

- liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8,731 20,197 12,365 13,973 5,302 3,747 

- long term loan - - 8,790 19,768 8,711 -

- long term advance - - - - - 2,580 

- long term deposits - 89 1,053 563 1,457 -

- long term government grant - - 91 1,278 1,438 -

GIDC Payable - - 175 581 - -

Provision for warranty 2,150 1,502 2,716 1,889 813 1,354 

Taxation-net 18,922 37,396 130,781 - - -

Sales tax payable - net 17,788 - 9,882 - - 7,046 

366,289 255,294 356,246 284,467 140,629 144,282 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,519,021 2,357,633 2,447,833 2,275,759 1,508,659 1,473,550 
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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Rupees in '000'

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Turnover - net 2,174,481 1,675,857 2,778,192 1,574,822 912,820 1,587,558 

Cost of Sales (1,705,948) (1,349,925) (2,166,540) (1,331,759) (795,406) (1,341,776)

Gorss Profit 468,533 325,932 611,652 243,063 117,414 245,782 

Distribution Costs (84,313) (57,325) (66,798) (51,477) (35,424) (44,945)

Administration Expenses (155,263) (120,601) (116,612) (91,246) (82,148) (92,595)

Other Expenses (25,963) (41,796) (51,406) (10,496) (1,784) (12,541)

Finance Costs (5,554) (5,559) (3,976) (4,216) (2,353) (6,791)

(271,093) (225,281) (238,792) (157,435) (121,709) (156,872)

Other Income 152,652 101,101 52,514 55,940 27,990 5,045 

Profit before Taxation 350,092 201,752 425,374 141,568 23,695 93,955 

Taxation (109,427) (65,346) (217,136) (40,882) (4,775) (22,443)

Profit after Taxation 240,665 136,406 208,238 100,686 18,920 71,512 
Earnings per Share (Rupees) - Basic and Diluted 18.05 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36

SIGNIFICANT RATIOS AND STATISTICS

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Liquidity & Leverage Ratios:

-Current Ratios 4.37 5.46 4.13 4.59 7.72 7.04
-Quick Ratios 2.76 2.78 2.50 3.26 4.50 3.05
-Liability as a % of Total Assets 15.98 12.80 16.59 15.59 14.19 12.59
-Interest Cover Ratio (Times) 64.03 37.28 107.99 34.58 11.07 14.84

Equity Ratios:
-Break up Value per Share (Rs) 158.75 154.19 153.12 144.06 97.09 96.59
-Dividend as a % of Capital 130.00 80.00 100.00 45.00 15.00 20.00
-Dividend Yield Ratio/ Cost of Equity (%) 10.00 12.12 13.16 5.70 2.47 3.27
-Dividend per Share (Rs) 13.00 8.00 10.00 4.50 1.50 2.00

Profitability Ratios:
-Gross Profit (%) 21.55 19.45 22.02 15.43 12.86 15.48
-Operating Profit( %) 16.36 12.37 17.30 9.92 3.05 6.34
-Profit before Tax(%) 16.10 12.04 15.31 8.99 2.60 5.92
-Profit after Tax (%) 11.07 8.14 7.50 6.39 2.07 4.50
-Return on Capital Employed( %) 16.54 9.81 20.83 7.37 1.83 7.29
-Earnings per Share (Rs) 18.05 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36
-Price Earing Ratio(Times) 7.20 6.45 4.87 10.46 42.80 11.41
-Dividend Payout Ratio (%) 72.03 78.20 64.03 59.59 105.71 37.31
-Dividend Cover (Times) 1.39 1.28 1.56 1.68 0.95 2.68
-Capital Turnover (Times) 1.03 0.82 1.36 0.82 0.71 1.23
-Return on Assets (%) 9.55 5.78 8.51 4.42 1.25 4.85

Turnover/Efficiency Ratios:
-Inventory Turnover Ratio(Times) 2.68 2.13 4.51 3.19 1.55 2.31
-Debtor Turnover Ratio(Times) 13.47 9.09 10.63 8.44 7.22 10.25
-Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio(Times) 2.39 1.77 2.88 1.66 2.28 3.53

Plant Capacity: 
-Plant Capacity Utilisation (%) 29 39 76 44 42 79

Share Performance:
-Year end Market Price per Share 130.00 66.00 76.00 78.99 60.73 61.15
-High Price per Share during the Year 195.49 86.49 90.75 92.44 71.89 111.90
-Low Price per Share during the Year 61.05 57.00 62.00 55.20 40.27 61.15
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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2024                  
Rs. in '000'

2024 Vs. 2023    
(%)

2023                  
Rs. in '000'

2023 Vs. 2022    
(%)

2022                  
Rs. in '000'

2022 Vs. 2021    
(%)

2021                  
Rs. in '000'

2021 Vs. 2020    
(%)

2020                 
Rs. in '000'

2020 Vs. 2019    
(%)

2019                 
Rs. in '000'

2019 Vs. 
2018    
(%)

ASSETS
Non Current Assets

Property,plant & equipment 909,670 (4) 946,396 (2) 963,138 1 950,050 129 414,291 (8) 449,581 (9)

Long-term loans & advances 4,260 (45) 7,753 26 6,138 (1) 6,176 61 3,826 12 3,415 (11)

Long-term deposits 5,414 (37) 8,579 12 7,649 (1) 7,709 74 4,418 (4) 4,607 (20)

919,344 (5) 962,728 (1) 976,925 1 963,935 128 422,535 (8) 457,603 (9)

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose tools 32,625 (11) 36,505 (8) 39,729 5 37,804 (4) 39,345 (23) 50,840 (7)

Stock-in-trade 555,749 (14) 649,130 20 539,764 57 343,671 (17) 413,575 (21) 525,105 (1)

Trade debts 212,528 92 110,408 (57) 258,317 (2) 264,625 144 108,542 (25) 144,187 (13)

Loans and advances 61,973 61 38,408 (6) 41,073 28 32,004 96 16,331 3 15,914 (36)

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 410 (47) 778 (46) 1,433 158 556 (67) 1,709 (27) 2,347 15 

Other receivables 6,788 (51) 13,951 1,661 792 (97) 29,986 328 7,010 1,526 431 (54)

Short term investments 696,589 35 514,904 (2) 523,766 (5) 550,573 65 333,906 225 102,827 1,764 

Taxation - net
- - - - - -

32,690 (68) 103,518 (20) 129,302 (9)

Sales tax refundable - net
- -

12,049 
- - -

595 (67) 1,826 100 
-

-

Bank balances 33,015 76 18,772 (72) 66,034 242 19,320 (68) 60,362 34 44,994 45 

1,599,677 15 1,394,905 (5) 1,470,908 12 1,311,824 21 1,086,124 7 1,015,947 6 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,519,021 7 2,357,633 (4) 2,447,833 8 2,275,759 51 1,508,659 2 1,473,550 1 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Share Capital 133,343 
-

133,343 
-

133,343 
-

133,343 
-

133,343 
-

133,343 -
Revaluation Surplus on Property Plant & 
Equipment 579,075 

-
579,075 

-
579,075 8 538,518 100 

- -

Revenue Reserves 1,404,432 4 1,344,021 1 1,329,352 6 1,249,035 8 1,161,311 1 1,154,676 2 

2,116,850 3 2,056,439 1 2,041,770 6 1,920,896 48 1,294,654 1 1,288,019 1 

Non Current Liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance 
lease 5,181 (62) 13,768 (1) 13,949 (41) 23,477 271 6,330 540 989 (81)

Long term loan
- - - - -

(100) 10,418 (66) 30,849 100 
-

-

Long term deposits 978 (12) 1,115 24 896 (36) 1,405 43 982 (51) 2,010 18 

Long term Govt Grant
- - - - -

(100) 91 (95) 1,923 100 -

GIDC Payable
- - - - -

(100) 1,311 100 
- - -

-

Deferred taxation 29,723 (4) 31,020 (11) 34,972 4 33,694 1 33,293 (13) 38,250 9 

35,882 (22) 45,903 (8) 49,817 (29) 70,396 (4) 73,377 78 41,249 (2)
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 309,008 64 187,923 3 183,306 (24) 240,350 105 116,995 (7) 125,289 (6)

Unclaimed dividend 9,689 18 8,184 15 7,087 17 6,065 3 5,913 (14) 6,846 30 
Current portion of

- liabilities against assets subject to finance 
leases 8,731 (57) 20,197 63 12,365 (12) 13,973 164 5,302 41 3,747 (29)

- long term loan
- - - -

8,790 (56) 19,768 127 8,711 100 
-

-

- long term deposits
- -

89 (92) 1,053 87 563 (61) 1,457 100 
-

-

- long term Government Grant
- - - -

91 (93) 1,278 (11) 1,438 100 
-

-

- GIDC Payable
- - - -

175 (70) 581 100 
- - -

-

Provision for warranty 2,150 43 1,502 (45) 2,716 44 1,889 132 813 (40) 1,354 (73)

Taxation-net 18,922 (49) 37,396 (71) 130,781 100 
- - - - -

Sales tax payable - net 17,788 100 
-

(100) 9,882 100 
- - -

(100) 7,046 151 

366,289 43 255,291 (28) 356,246 25 284,467 102 140,629 (3) 144,282 (5)

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,519,021 7 2,357,633 (4) 2,447,833 8 2,275,759 51 1,508,659 2 1,473,550 1 
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2024                  
Rs. in '000'

2024 Vs. 
2023    (%)

2023                  
Rs. in '000'

2023 Vs. 
2022    (%)

2022                  
Rs. in '000'

2022 Vs. 
2021    (%)

2021                  
Rs. in '000'

2021 Vs. 
2020    (%)

2020                  
Rs. in '000'

2020 Vs. 
2019    (%)

2019                  
Rs. in '000'

2019 
Vs. 
2018    
(%)

Turnover - net 2,174,481 30 1,675,857 (40) 2,778,192 76 1,574,822 73 912,820 (43) 1,587,558 (16)

Cost of Sales (1,705,948) 26 (1,349,925) (38) (2,166,540) 63 (1,331,759) 67 (795,406) (41) (1,341,776) (17)

Gorss Profit 468,533 44 325,932 (47) 611,652 152 243,063 107 117,414 (52) 245,782 (9)

Administration 
Expenses (155,263) 29 (120,601) 3 (116,612) 28 (91,246) 11 (82,148) (11) (92,676) 1 
Selling and distribution 
expenses (84,313) 47 (57,325) (14) (66,798) 30 (51,477) 45 (35,424) (21) (44,945) (25)

Other expenses (25,963) (38) (41,796) (19) (51,406) 390 (10,496) 488 (1,784) (86) (12,541) 51 

Other Income 152,652 51 101,101 93 52,514 (6) 55,940 100 27,990 446 5,126 2,748 

(112,887) (5) (118,621) (35) (182,302) 87 (97,279) 6 (91,366) (37) (145,036) (10)

Operating Profit 355,646 207,311 429,350 145,784 26,048 100,746 

Finance Costs (5,554) (0) (5,559) 40 (3,976) (6) (4,216) 79 (2,353) (65) (6,791) 252 
Profit before 
Taxation 350,092 74 201,752 (53) 425,374 200 141,568 497 23,695 (75) 93,955 (13)

Taxation (109,427) 67 (65,346) (70) (217,136) 431 (40,882) 756 (4,775) (79) (22,443) 12 

Profit after Taxation 240,665 76 136,406 (34) 208,238 107 100,686 432 18,920 (74) 71,512 (19)
Earnings per Share-
Basic and Diluted 
(Rupees) 18.05 76 10.23 (34) 15.62 107 7.55 432 1.42 (74) 5.36 (19)
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' %

ASSETS
Non Current Assets

Property,plant & equipment 909,670 36.1 946,396 40.1 963,138 39.3 950,050 41.7 414,291 27.5 449,581 30.5

Long-term loans & advances 4,260 0.2 7,753 0.3 6,138 0.3 6,176 0.3 3,826 0.3 3,415 0.2

Long-term deposits 5,414 0.2 8,579 0.4 7,649 0.3 7,709 0.3 4,418 0.3 4,607 0.3

919,344 36.5 962,728 40.8 976,925 39.9 963,935 42.4 422,535 28.0 457,603 31.1

Current Assets

Stores, spare parts & loose tools 32,625 1.3 36,505 1.5 39,729 1.6 37,804 1.7 39,345 2.6 50,840 3.5

Stock-in-trade 555,749 22.1 649,130 27.5 539,764 22.1 343,671 15.1 413,575 27.4 525,105 35.6

Trade debts 212,528 8.4 110,408 4.7 258,317 10.6 264,625 11.6 108,542 7.2 144,187 9.8

Loans and advances 61,973 2.5 38,408 1.6 41,073 1.7 32,004 1.4 16,330 1.1 15,914 1.1

Trade deposits and short term prepayments 410 0.0 778 0.0 1,433 0.1 556 0.0 1,709 0.1 2,347 0.2

Other receivables 6,788 0.3 13,951 0.6 792 0.0 29,986 1.3 7,010 0.5 431 0.0

Short term investments 696,589 27.7 514,904 21.8 523,766 21.4 550,573 24.2 333,906 22.1 102,827 7.0

Taxation - net - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 32,690 1.4 103,518 6.9 129,302 8.8

Sales tax refundable - net - 0.0 12,049 0.5 - 0.0 595 0.0 1,827 0.1 - 0.0

Bank balances 33,015 1.3 18,772 0.8 66,034 2.7 19,320 0.8 60,362 4.0 44,994 3.1

1,599,677 63.5 1,394,905 59.2 1,470,908 60.1 1,311,824 57.6 1,086,124 72.0 1,015,947 68.9

TOTAL ASSETS 2,519,021 100.0 2,357,633 100.0 2,447,833 100.0 2,275,759 100.0 1,508,659 100.0 1,473,550 100.0

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorised Capital

25,000,000 Ord. shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 

Share Capital 133,343 5.3 133,343 5.7 133,343 5.4 133,343 5.9 133,343 8.8 133,343 9.0

Revaluation Surplus on land 579,075 23.0 579,075 24.6 579,075 23.7 538,518 23.7 - 0.0 - 0.0

Revenue Reserves 1,404,432 55.8 1,344,021 57.0 1,329,352 54.3 1,249,035 54.9 1,161,311 77.0 1,154,676 78.4

2,116,850 84.0 2,056,439 87.2 2,041,770 83.4 1,920,896 84.4 1,294,654 85.8 1,288,019 87.4

Non Current Liabilities

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 5,181 0.2 13,768 0.6 13,949 0.6 23,477 1.0 6,330 0.4 989 0.1

Long term loan - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 10,418 0.5 30,849                           2.0 - 0.0

Long term deposits 978 0.0 1,115 0.0 896 0.0 1,405 0.1 982 0.1 2,010 0.1

Long term Govt Grant - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 91 0.0 1,923 0.1 - 0.0

GIDC Payable - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0 1,311 0.1 - 0.0 - 0.0

Deferred taxation 29,723 1.2 31,020 1.3 34,972 1.4 33,694 1.5 33,293 2.2 38,250 2.6

35,882 1.4 45,903 1.9 49,817 2.0 70,396 3.1 73,377 4.9 41,249 2.8
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 309,008 12.3 187,923 8.0 183,306 7.5 240,350 10.6 116,995 7.8 125,289 8.5

Unclaimed dividend 9,689 0.4 8,184 0.3 7,087 0.3 6,065 0.3 5,913 0.4 6,846 0.5
Current portion of

- liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8,731 0.3 20,197 0.9 12,365 0.5 13,973 0.6 5,302 0.4 3,747 0.3

- long term loan - 0.0 - 0.0 8,790 0.4 19,768 0.9 8,711 0.6 - 0.0

- long term deposits - 0.0 89 0.0 1,053 0.0 563 0.0 1,457 0.1 - 0.0

- long term Govt Grant - 0.0 - 0.0 91 0.0 1,278 0.1 1,438 0.1 - 0.0

- GIDC Payable - 0.0 - 0.0 175 0.0 581 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0

Provision for warranty 2,150 0.1 1,502 0.1 2,716 0.1 1,889 0.1 813 0.1 1,354 0.1

Taxation-net 18,922 0.8 37,396 1.6 130,781 5.3 - 0.0 - 0.0 - 0.0

Sales tax payable - net 17,788 0.7 - 0.0 9,882 0.4 - 0.0 - 0.0 7,046 0.5

366,289 14.5 255,291 10.8 356,246 14.6 284,467 12.5 140,629 9.3 144,282 9.8

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,519,021 100.0 2,357,633 100.0 2,447,833 100.0 2,275,759 100.0 1,508,659 100.0 1,473,550 100.0
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' % Rs. in '000' %

Turnover - net 2,174,481 100 1,675,857 100 2,778,192 100 1,574,822 100 912,820 100 1,587,558 100

Cost of Sales (1,705,948) (78.45) (1,349,925) (80.55) (2,166,540) (77.98) (1,331,759) (84.57) (795,406) (87.14) (1,341,776) (84.52)

Gorss Profit 468,533 21.55 325,932 19.45 611,652 22.02 243,063 15.43 117,414 12.86 245,782 15.48 

Administration expenses (155,263) (7.14) (120,601) (7.20) (116,612) (4.20) (91,246) (5.79) (82,148) (9.00) (92,676) (5.84)
Selling and distribution 
expenses (84,313) (3.88) (57,325) (3.42) (66,798) (2.40) (51,477) (3.27) (35,424) (3.88) (44,945) (2.83)
Other 
expenses (25,963) (1.19) (41,796) (2.49) (51,406) (1.85) (10,496) (0.67) (1,784) (0.20) (12,541) (0.79)

Other Income 152,652 7.02 101,101 6.03 52,514 1.89 55,940 3.55 27,990 3.07 5,126 0.32 

(112,887) (118,621) (182,302) (97,279) (91,366) (145,036)
Operating 
Profit 355,646 16.36 207,311 12.37 429,350 15.45 145,784 9.26 26,048 2.85 100,746 6.35 

Finance Cost (5,554) (0.26) (5,559) (0.33) (3,976) (0.14) (4,216) (0.27) (2,353) (0.26) (6,791) (0.43)

Profit before Taxation 350,092 16.10 201,752 12.04 425,374 15.31 141,568 8.99 23,695 2.60 93,955 5.92 

Taxation (109,427) (5.03) (65,346) (3.90) (217,136) (7.82) (40,882) (2.60) (4,775) (0.52) (22,443) (1.41)

Profit after Taxation 240,665 11.07 136,406 8.14 208,238 7.50 100,686 6.39 18,920 2.07 71,512 4.50 

Earnings per Share-(Rupees) 18.05 10.23 15.62 7.55 1.42 5.36
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution 2024 2023
(Rupees in '000') % (Rupees in '000') %

Wealth Generated
Total gross revenue and other income 2,737,359                2,084,286                
Brought in materials and services 1,574,505                1,263,878                

1,162,854                100                820,408                  100                

Wealth distribution to stakeholders 
To Employees

Salaries and wages including retirement benefits 358,621                   30.84             261,209                   31.84             
To Government and Society

Income Tax, Sales Tax, FED and WWF 510,853                   43.93             372,014                   45.34             
To Shareholders 

Dividend 173,345                   14.91             106,674                   13.00             
To providers of Finance 

Financial charges for borrowed funds 5,264                      0.45               5,249                      0.64               
To Company

Retained Profits, Dep and Amortizatin 114,771                   9.87               75,262                     9.17               

1,162,854                100.00           820,408                  100.00           
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN ON THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF 
BOARD AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY THE BOARD IN 
ACHIEVING THE COMPANY’S OBJECTIVES: 
 
The Board of Directors (the Board) of Baluchistan Wheels Limited (BWL) has performed their 
duties diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed 
the affairs of the Company in an effective andefficient manner. The Board has exercised its powers 
and has performed its duties as stated in the Companies Act, 2017 (previously Companies 
Ordinance 1984), the Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations 2019(the Code) and the 
Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange (the Rule Book) where the Company is listed.  
 
The Board during the year ended 30 June 2024 played an effective role in managing the affairs of 
the Company and achieving its objectives in the following manner; 
 
 The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive, independent 

and female directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code and that 
members of the Board and its respective committees have adequate skill, experience and 
knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company; 

 
 The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration 

Committee and has approved their respective terms of references and has assigned adequate 
resources so that the committees perform their responsibilities diligently;  

 
 The Board has developed and put in place the rigorous mechanism for an annual evaluation 

of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors. The findings of 
the annual evaluation are assessed and re-evaluated by the Board periodically;  

 
 The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable 

them to perform their duties in an effective manner and that the five directors of the 
Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two directors of the 
Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program; 

 
 The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its Committees were held 

with the requisite quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and 
that the minutes of all the meetings (including committees) are appropriately recorded and
maintained;  

 
 The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and 

corporate values adhered through the Company and has developed significant policies for 
smooth functioning; 
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 All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its 

committees to strengthen and formalize the corporate decision making process; 
 

 All the related party transactions executed by theCompany were approved by the Board on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee;  

 
 The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular 

assessment through self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities;  
 
 The Board has prepared and approved the director’s report and has ensured that the 

directors’ report is published with the quarterly and annual financial statements of the 
Company and the content of the directors’ report are in accordance with the requirement of 
applicable laws and regulations;  
 

 The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Executive and 
other key executives including Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of 
Internal Audit;  
 

 The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely 
manner and the Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings; and  
 

 The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in 
accordance with the relevant laws and regulation applicable on the Company and the Board 
has always prioritized the Compliance with all the applicable laws and regulation in terms of 
their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision making.  
 

The evaluation of the Board’s performance is assessed based on those key areas where the Board 
requires clarity inorder to provide high level oversight, including thestrategic process; key business 
drivers and performing milestones,the global economic environment and competitive context in 
which the Company operates; the risk faced by the Company’s business; Board dynamics; capability 
and information flows.  
 
Based on the aforementioned, it can reasonably be stated that the Board of BWL has played a key 
role in ensuring that the Company objectives are notonly achieved, but also exceeded expectations 
through a joint effort with the management team and guidance andoversight by the Board and its 
members. 
 
 
 
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 
Chairman  
August 19, 2024 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The Directors are pleased to present their Report together with the Audited Financial Statements and 
Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2024. 
 
BUSINESS REVIEW 

Pakistan's automotive industry faced a challenging Financial Year 2024, with passenger car sales 
sliding to a 15-years’ low. The sector saw a significant 18% decline, with sales dropping to 103,826 
units from 126,878 units in Financial Year 2023. The trucks and buses segment also experienced a 
substantial 31% decline, with sales falling to 2,664 units from 3,836 units in the previous year. 
However, the tractor segment emerged as a bright spot, with sales soaring by 47% to 45,494 units in 
Financial Year 2024, up from 30,942 units in Financial Year 2023. This remarkable growth in tractor 
sales suggests a resilient agricultural sector, bucking the overall trend of decline in the industry. 
 
During the fiscal year July 2023 to June 2024, there was a decline in auto sales. Soaring auto prices, 
high auto financing costs due to record-high interest rates, low consumer purchasing power, and 
restrictions on the import of Completely Knocked Down (CKD) units all contributed to this downward 
trend. However, the agricultural sector experienced a positive trend during the same period, driven by a 
better crop yield. This uptick was largely attributed to a low base effect from the previous year's flood-
affected crops, resulting in a notable increase in tractor sales, which provided a silver lining in an 
otherwise challenging market. 
 
During the Financial Year 2024, the company achieved a significant 30% increase in overall 
consolidated revenue, reaching Rs. 2,174.481 million compared to Rs. 1,675.857 million in the 
previous year. The car wheels segment saw a modest 5% growth in sales, with revenues rising to Rs. 
796.451 million from Rs. 759.675 million. However, the Truck/Bus wheels segment experienced a 
more substantial 38% increase in sales, with revenues jumping to Rs. 212.062 million from Rs. 153.198 
million. The Tractor wheels segment saw the most remarkable growth, with sales surging 61% to Rs. 
1,072.854 million from Rs. 664.916 million. Additionally, scrap sales down by2% to Rs. 93.115 
million from Rs. 95.138 million, while export sales declined to zero from Rs. 2.929 million in the 
previous year. The Cost of Sales increased to Rs. 1,705.948 million from Rs. 1,349.925 million 
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

This year the Company has achieved highest ever profit after tax of its history. The company's financial 
performance showed significant improvement, with a 44% increase in gross profit, reaching Rs. 
468.533 million compared to Rs. 325.932 million in the previous year. Moreover, the company's 
profitability soared, with profit after taxation rising by 76% to Rs. 240.665 million, up from Rs. 
136.406 million in the previous year. This substantial growth in profit after taxation demonstrates the 
company's enhanced operational efficiency and effective financial management, and cost optimization 
measures leading to improved bottom-line performance. 
 
The company's impressive growth in gross profit and net profit can be attributed to the significant 
increase in production and sales of tractor wheels, driven by a surge in tractor sales due to favorable  

18



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
Manufacturers of  Automotive Wheels in Pakistan

agricultural yields, particularly in wheat and cotton crops, following a low base effect from last year's 
flood-affected crops. Additionally, Truck/Bus wheels sales saw a recovery due to improved sales volume 
from assemblers. However, car wheels sales experienced a decline due to higher car prices and expensive 
auto financing resulting from the high monetary policy rate of 22% round the year and 20.50% at year 
end. The substantial rise in other income, primarily from investments of surplus funds in Government 
treasury bills and exchange gainsresulting from favorable currency fluctuations. Furthermore, the reversal 
of prior year tax provisions also contributed to the increased net profit, rounding out a strong financial 
performance for the company. 
 
The comparative financial results for the year 2024 as against the year 2023 are as follows: 
 

 2024 2023 
 (Rs. in ‘000) 
Turnover-net      2,174,481 1,675,857 
Gross Profit 468,533 325,932 
Profit before Taxation          350,092 201,752 
Profit after Taxation          240,665 136,406 
Earnings per Share (Rs.) 18.05 10.23 

   
EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Based on the net profit for the current year, the earnings per share is Rs. 18.05(2023: Rs. 10.23) 
 
DIVIDEND  

The Board of Directors have approved final cash dividend of Rs. 3.0 per share(30%) for the year 
ended June 30, 2024 amounting Rs.40.003 million. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend 
of Rs.10 per share (100%) amounting Rs.133.3425 million already declared and paid to the 
shareholders thus making a total of Rs. 13.00 per share cash dividend (130%) for the year 2024 
amounting Rs. 173.345 million. (2023: Rs.8.00 per share (80%) amounting Rs.106.674million). 
 
HUMAN RESOURCE & WELFARE SCHEMES 

At our company, we recognize that our officers, staff, and workforce are the foundation of our 
success. We are committed to fostering a culture of excellence by empowering our talented and 
dedicated employees. To this end, we regularly provide opportunities for professional growth and 
development through training programs both domestically and internationally. Our human 
resource policies are designed to attract, recruit, develop, and retain top-tier talent, ensuring that 
our team members possess the skills and expertise necessary to drive our business forward. By 
investing in our people, we aim to maintain a high-performing workforce that is equipped to meet 
the challenges of an ever-evolving industry. 
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Our company prioritizes the well-being and satisfaction of our workforce by offering a range of 
direct and indirect rewards. These include recognition programs such as the "Worker of the 
Month" award, special health allocations, and various other benefits. We strictly adhere to Labour 
laws and have established a harmonious relationship with the CBA Labour Union. Additionally, 
our management regularly distributes bonuses to all employees, and we also provide benefits like 
Workers' Welfare Fund (WPPF) and Eid advance. Furthermore, we ensure our workers receive 
social security benefits and Employees' Old-Age Benefits Institution (EOBI) pension facilities, 
demonstrating our commitment to their financial security and well-being. 
 
SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT 

We prioritize the health and safety of our employees and are proactively managing risks 
associated with our manufacturing process. Our goal is to minimize the likelihood of accidents 
and injuries, and we are pleased to report that our efforts have been successful, with no major 
incidents occurring during production that have resulted in significant harm or loss of life. To 
ensure a safe working environment, we provide all plant employees with essential safety 
appliances and equipment, including uniforms, safety shoes, helmets, earplugs, gloves, and 
goggles. Additionally, we have installed a firefighting system and employed a full-time Safety 
Officer to oversee our safety protocols. Regular in-house training sessions and exercises are 
conducted to equip our employees with the knowledge and skills necessary to respond effectively 
in emergency situations, further reinforcing our commitment to their well-being. 
 
Our company is committed to providing comprehensive medical facilities and other necessary 
amenities to support the health and well-being of our employees. We have established a fully 
functional dispensary on site, staffed by a qualified dispenser, to address all types of medical 
treatments and emergencies. Furthermore, we have retained the services of qualified MBBS 
doctors to ensure prompt medical attention for our employees. To monitor their health, we 
conduct regular medical check-ups every six months, performed by a certified surgeon. In 
addition to these medical facilities, we encourage healthy lifestyle activities, including sports, 
with dedicated cricket and football teams at the factory. We also organize an annual picnic for 
both officers and workers, fostering a sense of community and camaraderie. By prioritizing our 
employees' health and happiness, we aim to create a positive and productive work environment. 
 
At BWL, we recognize the importance of environmental protection and take proactive measures 
to preserve nature and maintain a clean environment at our workplaces. We are committed to 
sustainability and take concrete steps to minimize our ecological footprint. Our factory is 
surrounded by a lush green environment, with trees and grass planted throughout the premises, 
creating a serene and natural ambiance. We strictly avoid the use of hazardous substances and 
ensure that all products and materials procured, as well as those manufactured, are completely 
free from harmful materials. By prioritizing environmental responsibility, we aim to contribute to 
a healthier planet and a sustainable future. 
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We are committed to environmental stewardship and adhere to all relevant laws, regulations, and 
standards. Our approach is proactive, designing new facilities and conducting operations with a 
focus on preventing adverse impacts on human health and the environment. We adopt industry 
best practices and ensure that our employees, contractors, suppliers, and customers receive 
comprehensive training and awareness programs on environmental systems, procedures, and 
shared responsibilities. Regular reviews and audits of our environmental performance enable us 
to set targets for continuous improvement, driving our commitment to minimizing our ecological 
footprint and promoting a sustainable future. By integrating environmental considerations into 
every aspect of our operations, we strive to make a positive impact on the world around us. 
 
Our company has earned the esteemed ISO-14001 certification, a globally recognized benchmark 
for environmental excellence. This achievement underscores our unwavering commitment to 
upholding international environmental standards and our dedication to sustainable practices. 
Having successfully completed the recertification process with an international agency, we 
continue to demonstrate our proficiency in environmental management and our relentless 
pursuit of eco-friendly operations. This certification serves as a testament to our organization's 
role as a responsible steward of the environment, driving positive change and promoting a 
greener future. 
 
ENERGY CONSERVATION  

 
We are implementing robust measures to optimize energy conservation across our operations, 
focusing on reducing consumption of electricity, gas, and fuels. A comprehensive plan has been 
developed and executed to minimize energy waste, and our production schedules are 
strategically planned to ensure only essential plants operate during peak electricity hours. By 
taking a proactive approach to energy management, we aim to reduce our carbon footprint, lower 
energy costs, and contribute to a more sustainable future. Our energy-efficient practices are 
designed to strike a balance between meeting our operational needs while minimizing our impact 
on the environment. 

 
UPGRADATION OF PLANT & PROCESS  

To ensure our wheels meet international standards and exceed customer expectations, we 
prioritize the continuous upgrading and maintenance of our plant, machinery, and processes. This 
proactive approach enables us to achieve optimal performance, prolong the lifespan of our 
equipment, and maintain a high level of product quality. By investing in modern technology and 
regular maintenance, we guarantee our machinery and equipment operate at peak efficiency, 
resulting in a longer workable life and reduced downtime. This commitment to excellence 
ensures we consistently deliver high-quality products that meet our customers' precise 
specifications and quality requirements. 
 
To stay at the forefront of technological advancements and ensure our equipment remains 
cutting-edge, we regularly collaborate with foreign technical experts and maintain ongoing 
relationships with our plant and machinery suppliers. This partnership enables us to tap into 
their expertise, gain valuable insights, and implement improvements that drive efficiency and 
productivity. 
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This year, we undertook a significant refurbishment and overhaul program, which included the 
following machines: 

a).We successfully completed a comprehensive refurbishment of our Shot Blasting machine, restoring 
it to optimal working condition. The scope of work included: 

 Complete overhaul and replacement of all four rotor gates 
 Inspection and servicing of cooled casting plates 
 Replacement of seals and rubber packings 
 Servicing of gearboxes and all motors 

 
Following the refurbishment, the machine underwent a thorough inspection and testing, confirming its 
satisfactory performance and readiness for operation. This meticulous refurbishment ensures the Shot 
Blasting machine continues to operate efficiently and effectively, meeting our production requirements. 
 
b). Our in-house team successfully completed the refurbishment and fabrication work on the 
Pretreatment line of our powder coating paint shop. The scope of work included: 
 

 Fabrication and installation of new MS sheets 
 Replacement of showering pipes with stainless steel (SS) pipes 
 Comprehensive welding work 
 Design and installation of a new heat exchanger for the phosphating tank 
 Installation of burners after thorough testing 

 
Following the completion of this project, the pretreatment line washing area is now operating 
satisfactorily, ensuring improved efficiency and quality in our powder coating process. By leveraging 
our in-house expertise, we were able to achieve significant cost savings while maintaining the highest 
standards of quality and safety. 
 
c). To enhance the reliability and longevity of our pneumatic machinery, we have installed an Air 
Dryer at the Atlas Capco Air Compressor. This strategic upgrade enables us to supply moisture-free air 
to our pneumatic equipment, significantly extending the life of critical components. By removing 
moisture from the compressed air, we minimize the risk of corrosion, wear, and tear, ensuring optimal 
performance and reducing maintenance requirements. This proactive investment in our compressed air 
system demonstrates our commitment to maintaining a efficient and productive manufacturing 
environment. 
 
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY CONTROL   

Our Research and Development (R&D) Department is dedicated to driving innovation and 
excellence in product development, ensuring customer satisfaction and adherence to 
international standards. Over the years, our R&D capabilities have expanded significantly, 
empowering our Design Office to leverage cutting-edge technologies such as: 
 

 Computer-Aided Design (CAD) for products, tools, dies, jigs, and fixtures 
 Finite Element Analysis (FEA) and computer simulations for design validation 
 3D modeling and prototyping 
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These enhanced capabilities enable us to streamline our product development process, reduce 
design flaws, and accelerate time-to-market. By investing in R&D and embracing advanced 
technologies, we reinforce our commitment to delivering high-quality products that meet the 
evolving needs of our customers. 
 
Our R&D Department boasts a state-of-the-art Tool & Die manufacturing shop, fully equipped 
with both conventional and CNC machines. This in-house facility enables us to design and 
manufacture a comprehensive range of tools and dies, including: 
 

 Fixtures 
 Jigs 
 Gauges 
 Running tooling spares 

 
This self-sufficiency ensures we can meet our production requirements efficiently, while also 
supporting the repair and manufacture of machinery spares. By maintaining control over our 
tooling production, we can guarantee precision, quality, and timely delivery, ultimately enhancing 
our overall manufacturing capabilities and productivity. 
 
Our R&D Department is staffed by a highly skilled and experienced team, dedicated to the repair 
and maintenance of production tooling. This expert team is continuously focused on: 
 

 Process improvement 
 Minimizing downtime 
 Reducing rejections 

 
Through in-depth analysis and strategic recommendations, they support the acquisition of 
cutting-edge equipment, machinery, and tooling, ensuring our operations remain at the forefront 
of technology and efficiency. By leveraging their expertise, we optimize our production processes, 
enhance productivity, and maintain the highest standards of quality and reliability. 
 
As a critical safety component, wheels require stringent dimensional control and rigorous quality 
assurance. To ensure the highest standards, we have implemented comprehensive quality control 
procedures that span the entire manufacturing process, from material procurement to final 
delivery. Our meticulous approach guarantees that every wheel meets exacting specifications, 
undergoing rigorous inspections and tests to confirm: 
 

 Material quality 
 Dimensional accuracy 
 Structural integrity 

 
By maintaining uncompromising quality control measures, we provide our customers with 
wheels that meet the most demanding safety and performance requirements, instilling 
confidence in our products and reinforcing our commitment to excellence. 
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Our Quality Control Department is fully equipped with state-of-the-art testing equipment, tools, 
and instruments that meet international standards, enabling us to meticulously control processes 
and monitor wheel quality. To ensure precision and accuracy, we: 
 

 Regularly upgrade and calibrate our instruments and gauges 
 Utilize advanced quality checking equipment 

 
This is complemented by our team of experienced and trained professionals, who possess the 
expertise to operate these tools effectively. By combining cutting-edge technology with human 
expertise, we guarantee that our products meet and exceed customer quality requirements, 
reinforcing our commitment to delivering exceptional quality wheels. 
 
COMPANY’S CONTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMY OF THE COUNTRY 

Our company, as a vital import substitution unit, makes a significant contribution to the national 
economy by saving precious foreign exchange reserves. In the year under review, we achieved a 
substantial saving of approximately $7.750 million in foreign exchange reserves through our 
supply of wheels to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs), thereby reducing reliance on 
imports and supporting the country's balance of payments. 
 
Furthermore, we are committed to contributing to the national exchequer, having paid a 
substantial amount of taxes, including income tax, sales tax, and other indirect taxes, totaling 
approximately Rs. 527 million. This demonstrates our dedication to supporting the government's 
revenue generation efforts. 
 
Beyond our economic contributions, our company also has a positive impact on the local 
community, providing valuable employment opportunities to residents of Hub and surrounding 
areas. This not only supports economic growth and development but also improves the quality of 
life for our employees and their families. 
 
CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK 

The Board of Directors and the Company remain committed to the principles of good corporate 
management practice with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. The Board and 
management are cognizant of their responsibilities and monitor the Company’s operations and 
performance to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness and transparency of financial and non-
financial information. 
 
In Compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd
the Board Members / Directors are pleased to place the following statements on record: 
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a. The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its 

state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 
 
b. Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company. 

 
c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the 

financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment. 

 
d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 

in the preparation of financial statements. 
 

e. The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored.   
 

f. There are no significant doubts in the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 

Key Operating and Financial Data 
 
The Key operating and financial data for last six years is given in this report. 
 
Government Taxes 
 
Outstanding Taxes were 18.922 million as disclosed in the Financial Statements.  
 
Investment of Employees Retirement Funds 
 
The following were the value of investments held by employee’s retirement benefits fund at the 
year end: 

 June 24(un-audited) 
- Executive Provident Fund Rs. 175.119million 
- Non-Executive Provident Fund Rs.    77.121 million 

 
Composition of the Board 
 
In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG),the Company 
encourages representation of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender 
diversity on its Board.  
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The current composition of the Board is as follows:  
 
Total number of Directors: 
      Total Number of Directors: 9 including 

(a) Male         : 8 
(b) Female     : 1 

 
Composition of the Board: 
 

(a) Independent Directors:4 
(b) Non-executive Directors:2 
(c) Executive Directors: 3 

 
The Board is responsible for making decisions with respect to important management matters, 
including the execution of important business activities and other matters as prescribed by law. 
These decisions are made after deliberating such matters according to the established criteria, 
assessing risks and giving such matters due consideration. The Board is also responsible for 
supervising and monitoring the conduct of duties. 
 
Board of Directors Meetings  
 
During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director 
was as follows: 

 
Sr. 
No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 

1 Mr. AnisWahabZuberi 4 
2 Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali 4 
3 Mr. Muhammad SiddiqueMisri 4 
4 Mr. Muhammad IrfanGhani 4 
5 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 4 
6 Mr. Aamir Amin 4 
7 Mr. Muhammad Javed 4 
8 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4 
9 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4 
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Audit Committee Meetings 
 
During the year four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Director was as 
follows: 
 
 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 

1 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 4 
2 Mr. AnisWahabZuberi 4 
3 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 4 
4 Mr. Aamir Amin 4 
5 Mrs. Saba Nadeem 4 

 
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee  
 
During the year a meeting of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R) was held. 
Attendance by each Director was as follows: 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended 

1 Mr. Muhammad Javed 1 
2 Mr. Muhammad IrfanGhani 1 
3 Mr. AnisWahabZuberi 1 
4 Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 1 

 
Directors’ Remuneration 

Directors’ Feesare paid in line withthe approval of the Board. 
 
Board Evaluation 
 
During the year, the Board has undertaken a formal process of evaluation of its performance. The overall 
performance of the Board measured on the defined parameters for the year was satisfactory. 
 
Directors’ Training 
 
The Board ensured the compliance of the requirement of Code of Corporate Governance in respect of 
Directors’ training program of the Board members.  The Company stands complied with the 
requirement of the Board Directors Training Program (DTP) certified as prescribed undersub clause 1 of 
regulation No. 19 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019. 
Currently,five directors of the Company have certification under Directors Training Program and two 
directors of the Company have the exemption from the requirements of the Directors’ Training Program. 
The remaining directors shall obtain certification under the DTP in due course of time. 
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 
 
There has been no material departure from the best practices of the Code of Corporate 
Governance and the company has fully complied with requirements of the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this 
report.  
 
Pattern of Shareholding  
 
The total number of Company’s shareholders as at June 30, 2024 was 1,369 as against 1,321on 
June 30, 2023. The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 and its disclosure is included in 
this annual report. 
 
The highest and lowest market prices of the Company’s shares during 2023-2024 were as 
follows:  
 
Highest  December 29, 2023  PKR 195.49 
Lowest  July 05,2023   PKR   61.05 
 
Trading in Shares of the Company by Directors and Executives  

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the directors, executives and their spouses and minor 
children have not traded in the shares of the Company. 
 
Appointment of Auditors 
 
The present Auditors M/s. BDO Ebrahim& Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being 
eligibleofferedthemselves for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-
appointment for the year ending June 30, 2025. The Directors endorse recommendation of the 
Audit Committee. 
 
STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES 

The Board regularly reviews the company’s strategic direction.  Annual plans and performance 
targets for business are set and are reviewed by the Board in the light of the company’s overall 
objectives.  The Board is committed to maintain highest standards of good corporate governance. 
As a leading wheel manufacturer, reputation for high ethical standards is critical to business 
success. Treatment of stakeholders with respect, courtesy and competence, ensuring clear 
conscientiousness in all decisions and operations and on this basis code of business principles 
has been developed and acknowledged by each Director and employee of the company. 
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NBP AND RELATED MATTERS 

NBP suit for recovery against the Company (BWL) and Privatization Commission (PC) for 
payment amounting to Rs. 91.25 million it has paid to PC, which the Company does not 
acknowledge as briefly explained at Note No. 26.1 in the financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2024.  

On March 13, 2023, the Privatization Commission (PC) has filed an appeal in the Honorable 
Supreme Court (SC) against the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed the 
appeal of the PC on the grounds of limitation on February 09, 2023. In order to defend this case, 
the management of the Company has filed a caveat in the Honorable SC through its lawyer the 
hearing of which is pending. 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 

We expect the automotive sector to experience growth in Financial Year 2024-25, driven by favorable 
factors such as reduced interest rates, easing inflation, economic stabilization, and a low base. 
However, despite this optimism, the industry may still face challenges in FY25, including new taxation 
measures, low disposable income, and a predicted slowdown in the agricultural sector. 
 
In light of these potential hurdles, our management team is proactive and vigilant, continually 
developing and implementing strategies to navigate future challenges and sustain business growth. By 
staying agile and adaptable, we aim to mitigate risks and capitalize on opportunities, ensuring our 
company remains resilient and competitive in an evolving market landscape. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

We would like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt gratitude to our valued customers 
and stakeholders for placing their trust and confidence in our company. We also extend our 
sincere appreciation to the entire BWL team, including our dedicated staff and workers, for their 
tireless efforts and contributions to our success. We recognize that our achievements would not 
have been possible without their hard work, commitment, and loyalty. As we move forward, we 
look forward to their continued support and collaboration, which will be instrumental in driving 
our future growth and success. 
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May Allah's blessings be upon us, guiding us towards achieving success and prosperity for our 
company, and may this success benefit all stakeholders and the country as a whole. May our 
endeavors be fruitful and contribute to the greater good. Aameen! 
 
   For and on Behalf of the Board 
 
 
 
 
Razak H.M. Bengali       Muhammad Irfan Ghani 
   Chief Executive         Director  
        
Karachi: August 19, 2024 
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The 44th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on September 21, 2024

Eligible shareholders are encouraged to participate and vote at General Meetings.

REGISTERED OFFICE
Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki,
Lasbella, Baluchistan.
Telephone # (0853) 363426,363428
Fax # (0853) 364025
E-mail:bwlfin@cyber.net.pk

Website:http://www.bwheels.com

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar (Services) Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SMCHS, 
Main
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
E-mail:info@cdcsrsl.com
UAN#+92(21) 0800-23275
Fax#+92 (21) 34326053

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Baluchistan Wheels Limited is listed on 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

STOCK CODE/SYMBOL

The stock code/symbol for trading in 
shares of Baluchistan Wheels Limited is 
BWHL

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Mr. Muhammad Asad Saeed
Company Secretary
Telephone : (+9221) 35650966
Fax: (+9221) 35688574

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 per share amounting to Rs. 40.003 million for the year ended June 30, 2024. This is an addition to interim cash dividend of Rs. 10/-
per share i.e 100.00%, making a total dividend of Rs. 13.0 per share i.e 130% amounting to Rs. 173.345 million (2023: Rs. 8/- per share i.e 80% amounting to Rs. 106.674 million).

BOOK CLOSURE DATES

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration from September 13, 2024 to September 21, 2024 (both days inclusive).
DIVIDEND 
REMITTANCES/PAYMENTS
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on August 19, 2024 has recommendeed the cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 per share. If the dividend is approved at the Annual General Meeting
will be paid within the statutory time limit of 15 working days.

REPORTING
Period Financial Results

1st Quarter - September 2023 October 17, 2023
2nd Quarter/Half Yearly - December 2023 February 2, 2024
3rd Quarter - March 2024 April 26, 2024
4th Quarter/Annual - June 2024 August 19, 2024

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE
During the year, the company has complied with all returns/forms and furnished all the relevant particulars as required under the repealed Companies Act, 2017 and allied rules, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Regulations and the Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES
To date none of the investors or shareholders has filed any significant complaint against any services provided by the Company to its shareholders. A standard grievance form is also made availabe on
the company's website : www.bwheels.com

WEB PRESENCE
The Company maintains a functional website as per the directions and notifications issued by the SECP. Updated information regarding the company can be accessed at its website, www.bwheels.com .
The website contains the latest financial results of the Company with the Company's profile.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019(CCG) 
 
Name of Company: BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED 
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2024 
 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 
 

1. The total number of directors are 9 as per the following: 
a.  Male:  8 
b. Female: 1 

 

2. The composition of Board is as follows: 
 

Category Names 
  
Independent Directors Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah 
 Mr. Aamir Amin 

Mr. Muhammad Javed 
 Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 
  
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi (Chairman) 
  
Executive Directors Mr. Razak H.M. Bengali (CEO) 
 Mr.Muhammad Siddique Misri 
 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani 
 

Female/ Non-Executive Director Mrs. Saba Nadeem 
 
3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company; 
 

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
takento disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures; 
 

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policiesof 
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant policies along with 
their datesof approval or updating in maintained by the Company; 
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
takenby the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations; 
 
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected 
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulationswith respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board; 
 

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors inaccordance 
with the Act and these Regulations; 
 

9. Out of the nine, seven Directors have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program or are 
exempted from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program as per the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. However, during the year, No Directors’ Training Program was 
arranged; 
 

10. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal 
Audit. 
 

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board; 
 

12. The Board has formed the following Committees that are required under the Code. The Committees 
comprise ofmembers as given below:  
 

a) Audit Committee  
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Chairman (Independent Director) 
Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi 
Mr. Aamir Amin 
Mr. Irfan Ahmed Qureshi 

Member(Non-executive Director) 
Member (Independent Director) 
Member (Independent Director) 

Mrs. Saba Nadeem Member (Non-executive Director) 
  

 

b) HR and Remuneration Committee  
Mr. Muhammad Javeed Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Anis Wahab Zuberi Member (Non-executive Director) 
Syed Zubair Ahmed Shah Member (Independent Director) 
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ghani Member (COO/ Executive Director) 
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised tothe committees for compliance.  
 

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: 
 

 
15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. The Head of Internal Audit is 
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversantwith the 
policies and procedures of the Company.   
 

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a 
satisfactory ratingunder the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board ofPakistan, that 
they and all their partners are in compliance with InternationalFederation of Accountants 
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of 
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal 
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company; 
 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide otherservices except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other 
regulatory requirement andthe auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard; 
 

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of 
theRegulations have beencomplied with. 
 
 
 
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 
Chairman  
August 19, 2024 

Meetings Frequency 
Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings were held during the 

financial year ended June 30, 2024. 
  
HR and Remuneration Committee One meeting was held during the financial year 

ended June 30, 2024. 
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2024 2023
Note

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 6 909,670                 942,811                 
Capital work in progress 7 -                        3,585                     

909,670                 946,396                 
Long-term loans and advances 8 4,260                     7,753                     
Long-term deposits 9 5,414                     8,579                     

919,344                 962,728                 
CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares and loose tools 10 32,625                   36,505                   
Stock-in-trade 11 555,749                 649,130                 
Trade debts 12 212,528                 110,408                 
Loans and advances 13 61,973                   38,408                   
Deposits and short term prepayments 14 410                        778                        
Other receivables 15 6,788                     13,951                   
Short-term investments 16 696,589                 514,904                 
Sales tax refundable - net -                        12,049                   
Bank balances 18 33,015                   18,772                   

1,599,677              1,394,905              
TOTAL ASSETS 2,519,021              2,357,633              
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital

250,000                 250,000                 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 19 133,343                 133,343                 
Revenue reserves 20 1,404,432              1,343,553              
Revaluation surplus on property plant and equipment 21 579,075                 579,075                 

2,116,850              2,055,971              
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 22 5,181                     13,768                   
Long-term deposits 23 978                        1,115                     

 Deferred taxation 24 29,723                   31,485                   
35,882                   46,368                   

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 25 309,008                 187,926                 
Un-claimed dividend 9,689                     8,184                     
Current portion of long-term lease liabilities 22 8,731                     20,197                   
Current portion of long-term deposits 23 -                        89                          
Sales tax payable - net 17,788                   -                        
Taxation - net 17 18,922                   37,395                   
Provision for warranty 26 2,150                     1,502                     

366,289                 255,294                 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,519,021              2,357,633              
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 27

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                                             DIRECTOR                                CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 25,000,000 (2023: 25,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

         (Rupees in thousands)

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024
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2024 2023
Note

Turnover - net 28 2,174,481       1,675,857       
Cost of sales 29 (1,705,948)      (1,349,925)      
Gross profit 468,533          325,932          
Administrative expenses 30 (155,263)         (120,601)         
Selling and distribution expenses 31 (84,313)           (57,325)           
Other expenses 32 (25,963)           (41,796)           
Other income 33 152,652          101,101          
Operating profit 355,646          207,311          
Finance cost 34 (5,554)             (5,559)             
Profit before taxation 350,092          201,752          
Taxation 35 (109,427)         (65,346)           
Profit for the year 240,665          136,406          

Earnings per share - basic and diluted  (Rupees per share) 36 18.05              10.23              

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
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2024 2023
Note

Profit for the year 240,665          136,406          

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and 

Settlement of defined benefit plan liability 229                 1,602              

Deferred tax 24.1 -                 (465)               

229                 1,137              
Total comprehensive income for the year 240,894          137,543          

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE                                  DIRECTOR

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Capital reserves
Revaluation 
surplus on 

property plant and 
equipment

General
reserve

Remeasurement 
(loss) / gain on 
defined benefit 

plan

Unappropriated
profit

Balance at July 01, 2022 133,343              579,075                 160,000             (1,366)                 1,170,719                  1,908,428              2,041,771               

Profit for the year -                     -                        -                    -                      136,406                    136,406                136,406                  
Gain on remeasurement of defined benefit  liability - net of tax -                     -                        -                    1,137                   -                            1,137                    1,137                     

-                     -                        -                    1,137                   136,406                    137,543                137,543                  
Transaction with owners

Final dividend paid on ordinary shares @ Rs. 4.75 per share -                     -                        -                    -                      (63,338)                     (63,338)                 (63,338)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (33,336)                     (33,336)                 (33,336)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (26,669)                     (26,669)                 (26,669)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (123,343)                   (123,343)               (123,343)                
Balance at June 30, 2023 133,343              579,075                 160,000             (229)                    1,183,782                  1,922,628              2,055,971               

Balance at July 01, 2023 133,343              579,075                 160,000             (229)                    1,183,782                  1,922,628              2,055,971               

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Profit for the year -                     -                        -                    -                      240,665                    240,665                240,665                  
Settlement of defined benefit  liability - net of tax -                     -                        -                    229                      -                            229                       229                        

-                     -                        -                    229                      240,665                    240,894                240,894                  
Transaction with owners

Final dividend paid on ordinary shares @ Rs 3.5 per shares -                     -                        -                    -                      (46,670)                     (46,670)                 (46,670)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (26,669)                     (26,669)                 (26,669)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (66,673)                     (66,673)                 (66,673)                  

(40,003)                     (40,003)                 (40,003)                  

-                     -                        -                    -                      (180,015)                   (180,015)               (180,015)                
Balance at June 30, 2024 133,343              579,075                 160,000             -                      1,244,432                  1,983,507              2,116,850               

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,  2024

First Interim dividend for the year ended  June 30, 2024 paid on ordinary 
shares @ Rs 2.0 per share
Second Interim dividend for the year ended  June 30, 2024 paid on 
ordinary shares @ Rs 5.0 per share

Total comprehensive income for the year 

-----------------------------------------(Rupees in thousands)-----------------------------------------

Interim dividend for the period ended  June 30, 2023 paid on ordinary 
shares @ Rs. 2.5 per share

Third Interim dividend for the year ended  June 30, 2024 paid on 
ordinary shares @ Rs 3.0 per share

Second interim dividend for the period ended  June 30, 2023 paid on 
ordinary shares @ Rs. 2 per shares

Issued, 
subscribed

and paid-up 
capital

Total reserves Total equity

Revenue reserves

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  DIRECTOR
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2024 2023
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 39 402,582      173,935      
Finance cost paid (5,755)         (5,361)         
Income tax paid (133,188)     (156,264)     
Employees' benefit paid (10,754)       (3,991)         
Leave encashment paid (82)              (698)            
Long-term loans and advances - net 3,493          (1,615)         
Long-term deposits 2,939          1,675          

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 259,235      7,681          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property plant and equipment (13,068)       (5,606)         
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4,846          3,518          
Profit received on saving accounts and treasury bills 147,190      84,037        
Short-term investment -Net (181,685)     7,700          
Dividend received -              1,903          

Net cash (outflow) / inflow generated from investing activities (42,717)       91,552        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing -              (8,790)         
Lease rentals paid (23,765)       (15,459)       
Dividend paid on ordinary shares (178,510)     (122,246)     

Net cash used in financing activities (202,275)     (146,495)     
Net increase / (decrease)  in cash and cash equivalents 14,243        (47,262)       
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,772        66,034        

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 18 33,015        18,772        

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(Rupees in thousands)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHIEF EXECUTIVE                            DIRECTOR
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1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

3.2 Basis of measurement

3.3 Use of estimates and judgements:

-Islamic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) issued by the Institute of chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and 

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing from the period of
revision.

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.

Baluchistan Wheels Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on June 16, 1980 under
Companies Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is engaged in
manufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for trucks, buses, tractors, cars and
mini commercial vehicles. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The registered office of the Company is located at the 1st Floor, State Life Building No. 3,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The manufacturing facility (plant) of the
Company is situated at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act , 2017; and 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of :

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed.

Judgments and estimates made by management that are significant to the financial
statements are as follows:
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-

-

- allowance for expected credit losses (notes 5.6 and 12)
- taxation (notes 5.7,17 and 24)
- provision for warranty (notes 5.11 and 26)
- ROUA / lease liabilities (notes 5.3 and 22)
- contingencies (notes 5.12 and 27)

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

4

4.1

depreciation method, useful lives, residual values and fair value of property, plant and
equipment (notes 5.1 and 6)

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional
currency). The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees ('Rupees' or 'Rs.'),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended
June 30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to
the Company's operations or are not expected to have material impact on the financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective
for the year ended June 30, 2024

provision of slow-moving and obselete stores, spares and loose tools and stock-in-trade
(notes 5.4, 5.5, 10 and 11)

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND
REPORTING STANDARDS

January 01, 2023

` January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a single transaction

Effective date 
(annual periods
beginning on or 

after)
Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the
conceptual framework

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary exception to the
requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to pillar
two income taxes
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4.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial
instruments

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are
not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than
certain additional  disclosures.

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' - Supplier
finance arrangements January 01, 2024

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting
Standard (lAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not
result in any changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy
information disclosed in the financial statements. 

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting
policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to
disclosure of accounting policies, assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific
accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial
statements.

Effective date 
(annual periods
beginning on or 

after)

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
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January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

5 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
stated otherwise.

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for
the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-
current liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued
by IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB
effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP.

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any, except for freehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item including borrowing
costs and exchange differences recognised, for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment up to the commencement of commercial production. The cost of self constructed
assets includes the cost of materials, direct labor and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use.
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b) Capital work-in-progress

Subsequent costs (except freehold land) are included in an asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in statement of profit or loss during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The assets' residual values, depreciation method and useful lives of each part of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, and adjusted if impact on
depreciation is significant.

Capital work-in-progress (including stores held for capital expenditures) are stated at cost
and consists of expenditure incurred, advances made and other costs directly attributable to
operating fixed assets in the course of their construction and installation. Cost also includes
applicable borrowing costs. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as
and when assets are available for use intended by the management.

Depreciation on operating fixed assets other than land is provided on a reducing balance
method, except for computers which are depreciated on straight line method. Depreciation is
charged on addition from the day the asset is available for use and is continued to be
depreciated until it is derecognised. Rates of depreciation, which are disclosed in note 6, are
determined to allocate the cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not insignificant,
over its useful life.

Freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at revalued amount,
which is the fair value at the date of revaluation less accumulated impairment, if any.

Disposal of assets is recognised when significant risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership have been transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indications exist, the
assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment
loss, if any.
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5.3 Leases

a) Right of use assets

b) Lease liability

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group.
Impairment losses are recognised as expense in the statement of profit or loss. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
if no impairment losses had been recognised. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

The lease liability is measured upon initial recognition at the present value of the future lease
payments over the lease term, discounted with the specific incremental borrowing rate.
Subsequently lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. 

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using straight line method from the date of
recognition to the earlier of the end of useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of the right of use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of operating fixed assets. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically
reduced by the impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease
liability.

The right of use asset is measured at cost, as the amount equal to initially measured lease
liability adjusted for lease prepayments made at or before the commencement date, initial
direct cost incurred less any lease incentives received. 

Right of use asset pertaining to head office is depreciated over the lease term of 3 years using 
straight line method and vehicles over the useful life at the rate of 20% using reducing
balance method.
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5.4 Stores and spares

5.5 Stock-in-trade

5.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Stock-in-transit is valued at purchase price, freight value and other charges incurred thereon
upto the reporting date.

Stores and spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value
(NRV). Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges
incurred thereon.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The Company is
required to recognize allowance for doubtful debts on all financial assets carried at amortised
cost in accordance with  Expected Credit Loss (ECL) requiring to recognize the loss
irrespective whether the loss event has occurred. Bad debts are written off when considered
irrecoverable.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the
sale.

Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw material
is determined by using the moving average method.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and
provision is made for slow-moving and obsolete items annually, if required.

Work-in-process and finished goods consist of the direct materials costs, fuel and power cost
and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads including labour cost,
depreciation and maintenance etc.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in the
rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 
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5.7 Taxation

a) Current

b) Deferred

c)

Deferred tax is calculated based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted up to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the periods when the
differences reverse. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The Company takes into account decisions taken by the taxation authorities. For instance
where the Company's view differs from the income tax department at the assessment stage,
the disputed amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in
accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is
calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking
into account tax credits and tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising
from assessments framed during the reporting period for such years.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case it is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available in future years to utilize deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits.
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5.8 Government Grant

5.9 Borrowings

5.10 Trade and other payables

The Government Grant is measured upon initial recognition as the difference between fair
value of the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of the loan is the present value of the loan
proceed received, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar
instrument. Subsequently, the grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in line
with the recognition of interest expenses the grant is compensating.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds received
(net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of
the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not
billed to the Company and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Exchange gains and
losses arising on transaction in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the
carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

Borrowing costs on long term finances and short term borrowings which are obtained for the
acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which these
are incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost as
allowed under IAS 23 "Borrowing cost".

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are shown as interest and markup is
accrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.
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5.11 Provisions 

5.12 Contingencies

5.13 Financial instruments

5.13.1 Financial assets

Amortised cost

(i)

(ii)

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and amount of that obligation can be
measured reliably. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of
past events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortised cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and
is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
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Impairment

5.13.2 Financial liabilities

5.13.3 Recognition and measurement 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value and amortised cost, as the case may be. The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated
with each item. 

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost incurred is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) equity investment, or fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based
on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. 

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have occurred.
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5.13.4 Derecognition

5.14 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

5.15 Foreign currency translation

5.16 Employees benefits

5.16.1 Staff retirement benefits

b) Defined contribution plan (Provident Fund)

5.16.2 Compensated absences

The Company's employees benefits comprise of provident fund, compensated absences and
medical benefits for eligible employees.

Accrual for compensated absences is made to the extent of the value of accrued absences of
the eligible employees cadre at the reporting date using their current salary levels as per
Company's policy. No actuarial valuation of compensated absences is carried out as the
management considers that the financial impact is not material.

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for all
permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal
contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of
the basic salary for executives and 10% of the basic salary plus cost of living allowance for
non-executives.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the
recognised amounts and the Company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the contractual
rights that comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognised when they
are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency (i.e. 'Rupees') at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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5.16.3 Medical benefits

5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of goods

Others

-
-

-
-
-

Scrap sales are recognised on delivery to customers at realized amounts.

Sale of goods is recognised when the Company has transferred control of the products to the
customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. 

The Company maintains a health insurance policy for its entitled employees and their
respective spouses. The Company contributes premium to the policy annually. Such premium
is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit or loss in the period to which it relates.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s
activities as described below:

Return on deposit is accrued on time proportion basis by reference to the principle
outstanding and the applicable rate of return.

If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods net of sales taxes and discounts.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods passes to customers
and the customers can direct the use of and substantially obtain all the benefits from the
goods. Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by
transferring goods to a customer before the customer pays its consideration or before
payment is due.

All other revenues are accounted when performance obligations are met.

Profit on savings accounts is recognised on effective interest rate method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive such payment is established.
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5.18 Cash and cash equivalents

5.19 Earnings per share

5.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

5.21 Related party transactions

5.22 Segment reporting

Transactions with related parties are based at agreed rates at normal commercial rates on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to third party transactions.

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that
relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only
one reportable segment i.e manufacturing and marketing of automotive wheel rims for
trucks, buses, tractors, cars and mini commercial vehicles.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances.

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is declared and approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. Appropriations of profit are
reflected in the statement of changes in equity in the period in which such appropriations are
approved.
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6 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Year ended June 30, 2024

Net carrying value basis
Revalued amount / Opening net book value (NBV)581,634         38,217           259,404             6,349            1,201             7,454             3,027             422                2                    39,027        6,074        942,811         
Additions (at cost) -                 -                 11,959               -                -                 2,348             2,086             380                -                 -             2,140        18,913           
Disposals (NBV) -                 -                 -                     -                -                 (4,481)            (227)               -                 -                 -             -           (4,708)            
Transfer from right of use asset -                 -                 -                     -                -                 2,003             -                 -                 -                 (2,003)        -           -                 
Depreciation charge -                 (1,911)            (28,033)              (635)              (120)               (1,399)            (1,147)            (670)               -                 (8,573)        (4,858)      (47,346)          
Closing net book value 581,634         36,306           243,330             5,714            1,081             5,925             3,739             132                2                    28,451        3,356        909,670         

Gross carrying value basis
Revalued amount / Cost 581,634         105,813         1,082,606           31,486          4,945             35,758           17,163           3,922             42                  56,666        20,709      1,940,744      
Accumulated depreciation -                 (69,507)          (839,276)            (25,772)         (3,864)            (25,472)          (13,424)          (3,790)            (40)                 (32,576)      (17,353)     (1,031,074)     
Net book value 581,634         36,306           243,330             5,714            1,081             10,286           3,739             132                2                    24,090        3,356        909,670         

Year ended June 30, 2023

Net carrying value basis
Revalued amount / Opening net book value (NBV)581,634         40,229           286,265             7,054            1,146             12,722           2,904             375                2                    30,807        -           963,138         
Additions (at cost) (refer note 6.2) -                 -                 3,145                 -                175                 -   1,447             73                  -                 14,766        9,110        28,716           
Disposals (NBV) -                 -                 -                     -                -                 (3,414)            (100)               -                 -                  -   -           (3,514)            
Depreciation charge -                 (2,012)            (30,006)              (705)              (120)               (1,854)            (1,224)            (26)                 -                 (6,546)        (3,036)      (45,529)          
Closing net book value 581,634         38,217           259,404             6,349            1,201             7,454             3,027             422                2                    39,027        6,074        942,811         

Gross carrying value basis
Revalued amount / Cost 581,634         105,813         1,070,647           31,486          4,945             31,407           15,077           3,542             42                  56,666        18,569      1,919,828      
Accumulated depreciation -                 (67,596)          (811,243)            (25,137)         (3,744)            (19,592)          (12,050)          (3,120)            (40)                 (22,000)      (12,495)     (977,017)        
Net book value 581,634         38,217           259,404             6,349            1,201             11,815           3,027             422                2                    34,666        6,074        942,811         

Depreciation rate (% per annum) -                 5 to 10 10 to 20 10                 10                  20 33                  33                  10                  20              33             

6.1
 

2024 2023
Note

6.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 29 33,172               36,066          
Selling and distribution expenses 31 4,134                 134               
Administrative expenses 30 10,040               9,329            

47,346               45,529          

6.3 The cost of fully depreciated assets as at June 30, 2024 is Rs. 75.530 million (2023: Rs. 75.530 million).

Computers  

(Rupees in thousands)

Description

This freehold land of 23.593 acre (2023: 23.593 acre)  is located at Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, Lasbella, Baluchistan.

Total

(Rupees in thousands)

Freehold land 
(note 6.1)           

Buildings on 
freehold land

Plant and 
machinery

Electrical 
installations

Furniture
 and fixtures

Library books
Right of use assets

Vehicles Head 
office 

Vehicles       
Office 

equipments
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6.4

These valuations fall under level 2 hierarchies which have been explained in note 6.4.2.

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.2 Non financial asset fair valuation

6.5 Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Details of the latest revaluation exercises carried out by the external valuers based on which
revaluation surplus has been recorded in these financial statements are as follows:

Revaluation 
date

Name of 
external 
valuer

Carrying values 
as at June 30, 

2024
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

Written down 
value before 
revaluation

Fairwater 
Property 

Valuers & 
Surveyors 
(Private) 
Limited

Leasehold land June 30, 2022 2,559                   581,634             

Revalued 
amount 

as at revaluation 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

581,634             

The fair market value and the forced sales value of the revalued land is Rs. 581.634 million and 
465.307 million respectively.

Valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of leasehold land and the significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation are as follows:

The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value measurements are as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not available
for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Level 2: Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
date (unobservable inputs).
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Freehold land

2024 2023
Note

7 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

This comprises of:
Plant and machinery 7.1 -                   3,585            

7.1 Movement of carrying amount of plant and machinery

Opening balance 3,585            -                
Additions (at cost) -                3,585            
Transferred to operating fixed assets (3,585)           -                
Closing balance -                3,585            

8 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured
Employees -                1,996            
Executives 8.1 & 8.2 3,701            4,388            

3,701            6,384            
Current maturity 13 (1,057)           (1,747)           

2,644            4,637            
Advances - secured
Employees 38,534           19,242           
Executives 8.2 2,681            6,085            

41,215           25,327           
Current maturity 13 (39,599)         (22,211)         

1,616            3,116            
4,260            7,753            

8.1

8.2

This represents loans given to executives as per employment terms. These are recoverable in
equal monthly installments over a period of five years. These loans are secured against the
retirement benefits of employees and does not carry any interest or mark-up.

(Rupees in thousands)

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives and employees at the end of any month
during the year was Rs. 11.971 million (2023: Rs. 10.474 million).

The estimated fair value of land would increase / decrease in line with the selling prices for
property of same nature in the immediate neighbourhood and adjoining areas.

The fair value of freehold land was determined by obtaining market values of the properties and
considering its size, nature and location, as well as the trend in the real estate and property
sector. All relevant factors affecting the saleability of the asset, availability of the buyers and the
assessment of its real value under prevailing economic conditions were accounted for. The fair
value of the land was assessed based on information available in current real estate market and
has been categorized as level 2.
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2024 2023
Note

9 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Unsecured - considered good
Trade deposits              4,014              3,761 
Lease deposits              1,400              4,818 

             5,414              8,579 
10 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 9,327            8,126            
Spare parts 83,756           89,007           
Loose tools 1,931            2,216            

95,014           99,349           
10.1 (62,390)         (62,844)         

32,625           36,505           

10.1 Provision for slow-moving stores and spares

Opening balance 62,844           62,610           
Reversal / Provision during the year 33 (454)              234               
Closing balance 62,390           62,844           

11 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials 109,467         192,742         
Work-in-process 251,733         175,548         
Finished goods 112,060         176,174         
Scrap stock 4,386            2,674            

477,646         547,138         
Stock in transit 85,491           113,668         

563,137         660,806         
Provision for slow-moving stock-in-trade 11.1 (7,388)           (11,676)         

555,749         649,130         
11.1 Provision for slow-moving and obsolete stock-in-trade

Opening balance 11,676           4,018            
Reversal / Provision made during the year 33 (4,288)           7,658            
Closing balance 7,388            11,676           

(Rupees in thousands)

Provision for slow-moving stores and spares
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2024 2023
Note

12 TRADE DEBTS

Unsecured - considered good 212,528         110,408         

13 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current maturity of long-term loans and 8              1,057 1,747            
Advances
Current maturity of long-term advances 8 39,599           22,211           
for expenses 13.1 1,015            1,157            

20,302           13,293           
60,916           36,661           
61,973           38,408           

13.1

14 DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits
Trade deposits -                -                
Lease deposits -                470               

-                470               
Prepayments 410               308               

410               778               
15 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Markup on treasury bills 6,614            13,493           
Accrued markup on KE Sukuks -                127               
Deposit accounts -                32                 
Insurance claim 174               299               

6,788            13,951           

(Rupees in thousands)

to suppliers

This includes advances provided to employees to meet business expenses. These advances are
interest free.
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2024 2023
Note

16 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities 16.1 & 16.2 -                 2,609             

-                 2,609             
At amortised cost

Treasury bills 696,589          507,295         
Sukuks -                 5,000             

696,589          514,904         
16.1 Listed equity securities

Investment in equity securities of listed companies are as follows:

2024

Honda Atlas Cars 

(Pakistan) Limited -                 923                
Fauji Cement Company Limited -                 329                
Nishat Mills Limited -                 284                
Attock Refinery Limited -                 1,073             

-                 2,609             

16.2

Market value -                 2,609             
Carrying value -                 (3,770)           

-                 (1,161)           
17 TAXATION - NET

Advance income tax 92,267            30,300           
Provision for taxation 35 (111,189)         (67,695)         

(18,922)           (37,395)         
18

Current accounts 14,845            12,004           
Saving accounts 18.1 18,170            6,768             

33,015            18,772           

18.1 These carry profits at the rates ranging from 19.80% to 22.80% (2023: 16% to 20.5%) per
annum.

2023

During the year the company has disposed off its investment in listed securities.

(Rupees in thousands)

BANK BALANCES - (Local Currency)

Number of shares Company name
2023

10,000

28,125
5,000

-                 

-                 

-                 

6,250

2024

-                 
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19 ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Fully paid in cash 92,760                  92,760                
40,583                  40,583                

133,343                133,343              

19.1

20 RESERVES

Revenue reserves
General reserve 160,000           160,000         
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan- net -                  (229)               
Un-appropriated profit 1,244,432        1,183,782      

1,404,432        1,343,553      

21 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

This represents revaluation surplus relating to freehold land (notes 6.4 and 6.5).

2024 2023

Balance as the beginning of the year            579,075           579,075 
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of 
incremental depreciation charged / disposals 
during the year, net of deferred tax                      -                       -   
Related deferred tax liability
Revaluation surplus arising during the year                      -                       -   

                     -                       -   
           579,075           579,075 

4,058,250         

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The
holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

Number of ordinary

shares of Rs. 10/- each 2024 2023

(Rupees in thousands)2023

(Rupees in thousands)

13,334,250       

9,276,000         
4,058,250         

13,334,250       
Issued as fully paid bonus shares

2024

9,276,000         
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2024 2023

22 LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities 13,912            33,965          
Current portion (8,731)             (20,197)         

22.1 5,181              13,768          
22.1 Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:

(Rupees in thousands)

Vehicles
Head office 

premises
Total Vehicles

Head office 
premises

Total

(Rupees in thousands) (Rupees in thousands)

Opening balance 27,694         6,271           33,965         22,953         -               22,953         
Addition 1,962           1,962           
Adjustment (1,904)          269              (1,635)          14,000         9,110           23,110         
Accretion of interest 4,371           1,079           5,450           6,773           2,020           8,793           

2,467           3,310           5,777           20,773         11,130         31,903         
Payments (20,836)       (4,994)          (25,830)       (16,032)       (4,859)          (20,891)       
Closing balance 9,325           4,587           13,912         27,694         6,271           33,965         
Current maturity (4,144)          (4,587)          (8,731)          (17,186)       (3,011)          (20,197)       

5,181           -               5,181           10,508         3,260           13,768         

2024 2023

Minimum lease 
payment

Present Value
Minimum lease 

payment
Present Value

                   ------------------------(Rs. in '000)-----------------------

Within one year 10,841              8,731                24,424              20,197              
After one year but not more than five year 5,786                5,181                16,314              13,768              

16,627              13,912              40,738              33,965              
Amount representing finance charges (2,715)               -                    (6,773)               -                    
Present value of minimum lease payments 13,912              13,912              33,965              33,965              
Current portion (8,731)               (8,731)               (20,197)             (20,197)             

5,181                5,181                13,768              13,768              

2024 2023Maturity analysis-contractual cash flow

22.2

22.3

22.4

22.5

Rentals are payable in equal monthly installments whereas repairs and insurance costs are borne
by the Company. These are secured against demand promissory notes and title documents of the
vehicles.

The Company has entered into various finance lease agreements with Bank Al Habib Limited in
respect of vehicles. The rate of interest used as the discounting factor ranges between 18% to
24.5% per annum (2023: 12.2% to 23% per annum).

The Company is bound by certain covenants which includes but are not limited to payment of
certain taxes and to exercise reasonable care.

The Company has entered in to an rental agreement for head office premises. The rental period
is more than 3 years. 
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2024 2023
Note

23 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Deposits from employees                  978              1,204 
Current maturity                     -                   (89)

24.1                  978              1,115 

23.1

24 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation 24.1 29,723            31,485          

24.1 The net balance for deferred taxation is in respect of
following temporary differences:

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 49,435            55,942          
Defined benefit plan -                 465               
Right-of-use assets 7,673              8,657            

57,108            65,064          
Deferred tax assets

Provisions 23,218            23,729          
Lease liabilities 4,167              9,850            

(27,385)           (33,579)         
29,723            31,485          

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 16,965            16,085          
Accrued liabilities 224,963          100,800        
Contract liabilities 25.1 27,389            25,720          
Gratuity fund -                 2,188            
Provident fund -                 314               
Retention money 455                 455               
Compensated absences 8,137              5,800            
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25.2 3,989              3,120            
Workers' Welfare Fund 26,499            32,636          
Security deposits 388                 388               
Mark-up on running finance -                 200               
Others 223                 220               

309,008          187,926        

Represents interest-free deposits received from employees on account of executive cars and
generator scheme and are adjustable within the period of five and three years respectively
against respective assets.

(Rupees in thousands)

25.1 This represents advance received from various customers. Revenue recognised during the year
from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted to Rs. 19.504 
million (2023: Rs. 2.254 million).
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2024 2023
Note

25.2 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Opening balance 3,120              4,845            
Interest on funds utilized in Company's business 34 135                 148               
Allocation for the year 32 18,814            12,120          

22,069            17,113          
Amount paid during the year (18,080)           (13,993)         
Closing balance 3,989              3,120            

26 PROVISION FOR WARRANTY

Opening balance 1,502              2,716            
Provision / (Reversal) made during the year 648                 (1,214)           
Closing balance 2,150              1,502            

27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1 Contingencies

27.1.1

27.1.2

27.1.3

On April 08, 2004, National Bank of Pakistan (NBP) has made a payment to the Privatisation
Commission amounting to Rs. 91.25 million and filed a suit in the Honorable High Court of
Sindh for the recovery of the same from the Company which was subsequently transferred due
to administrative reasons to the Banking Court No. III at Karachi. On January 06, 2022, the
Honorable Banking Court dismissed the Suit # 53 of 2017 in Company's favour, but the NBP
has filed 1st Appeal # 34 of 2022 in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against this order and
the appeal is pending till date. The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor, is of
the opinion that the case will be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision
has been made in these financial statements.

On August 06, 2001, the Company filed suit before the Honorable High Court of Sindh at
Karachi, against NBP for satisfaction of Charge on asset which was created in anticipation of a
prospective loan / finance to be provided by NBP to the Company. As the proposed loan /
finance had not been obtained from NBP by the Company, the charge should have been
redeemed by NBP. Currently, the matter is at the state of evidence of the parties. The
management, based on the advice of legal advisor, is of the view that no financial implications
will arise to the Company as a result of this suit and accordingly, no provision has been made in
this respect in these financial statements.

On March 13, 2023, the Privatization Commission (PC) has filed an appeal in the Honorable
Supreme Court (SC) against the order of the Islamabad High Court which had dismissed the
appeal of the PC on the grounds of limitation on February 09, 2023. In order to defend this case
The management of the Company has filed a caveat in the Honorable SC through its lawyer.

(Rupees in thousands)
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27.1.4

27.1.5

27.1.6

On September 27, 2018, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) amended the
assessment and issued order under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the
tax year 2017, reducing tax refunds for the said tax year by Rs. 28.39 million. Being aggrieved,
the Company filed and appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) (CIRA), who
maintained the demand of DCIR through appellate order dated January 15, 2019. The Company
filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication.

On January 25, 2018, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the
assessment and issued order under section 122 (5A) of Income Tax Ordinance, (ITO) 2001, for
the tax year 2015, and created arbitrary tax demand of Rs. 35.356 million. Being aggrieved with
the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals - I [CIR (A)] on which the concerned CIR (A) through its order under section
129 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, deleted certain additions and remanded back the case to
the concerned ACIR on account of certain additions. The ACIR filed an appeal before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on the issued which were deleted by the CIR (A) which is
pending adjudication.

The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has maintained/
retained a provision amounting of Rs. 17.678 million on prudent basis.

On March 15, 2021, the DCIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122(5A)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, demanded Rs. 417.996 million
against which the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) who has passed an appellate order
under section 129(1) whereby set aside / delete the whole demand except for addition in
difference in stock between the Income tax return and sales tax return amounting to Rs. 72.088
million. against which the Company filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR). The ATIR vide its order dated November 23,2023 annulled both the roders passed by
DCIR and CIR(A) in the agitated issue (i.e. addition in defference in stock) and allowed an
appeal. On November 28, 2022, the DCIR passed an order under section 122(4) to give effect
under section 124 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2018, whereby the
learned DCIR made addition in the income amounting to Rs. 19,204 million on amount of
purchase due to non-deduction of tax under section 153(1)(a) of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 against which the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A).

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has not maintained/retained a provision
in respect of this contingency.
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27.1.7

27.1.8

27.1.9

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has made a provision of Rs. 33.254
million on prudent basis.

On May 31, 2023, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued order under section 122(5A) of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2019, and created tax demand of Rs. 6.203
million on various issues. Being aggrieved with the order of the concerned ACIR, the Company
filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) vide order dated January 01, 2024 deleted
certain additions, remanded back the issue of disallowance of credit of withholding taxes
deducted/paid and confirmed certain additions. The Company filed second appeal before the
ATIR on the issues confirmed by CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has made a provision of Rs. 6.203
million on prudent basis.

The CIR(A) vide its appellate order under section 129 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, date
May 30, 2024 remanded back the case to the concerned DCIR. On account of addition Rs.
19,204 million. The concerned DCIR on the basis of details and explanations submitted by the
Company was drawn no adverse inference in this regard and deleted the addition Rs. 19,204
million and passed order under sction 124 read with section 122(1)/(5) of the income tax
Ordinance 2001 dated June 20, 2024 with NIL demand.

On November 24, 2023, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued order under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2020, and created tax demand of
Rs. 354,180/- on various issues. Being aggrieved with the order of the concerned ACIR, the
Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) vide order dated January 31, 2024
deleted certain additions and confirmed certain additions. The Company filed second appeal
before the ATIR on the issues confirmed by CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has reversed the provision of Rs.
16.003 million and maintained a provision of Rs. 16,715 million on prudent basis.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, has made a provision of Rs. 0.354
million on prudent basis.

On January 17, 2024, the ACIR amended the assessment and issued order under section
122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2021, and created tax demand of
Rs. 33.254 million on various issues. Being aggrieved with the order of the concerned ACIR,
the Company filed an appeal before the CIR(A). The CIR(A) vide order dated April 05, 2024
deleted some additions, remanded back the issue of disallowance of credit of withholding taxes
deducted/paid and confirmed certain additions. The Company filed second appeal before the
ATIR on the issues confirmed by CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.
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2024 2023

27.2 Commitments

Outstanding letters of guarantee               4,512              4,512 
Outstanding letters of credit - raw material            249,754              6,982 
Outstanding letters of credit - Spares               1,365                   -   

28 TURNOVER - NET

Local sales 28.1 2,584,707       1,980,185     
  Sales return (15,948)           (5,195)           
  Sales tax (394,277)         (302,062)       

(410,225)         (307,257)       
2,174,481       1,672,928     

  Export Sales -                 2,929            
2,174,481       1,675,858     

28.1 Local sales include scrap sales of Rs. 93.115 million (2023: Rs.95.138 million).

29 COST OF SALES

Materials consumed 29.1 1,180,014       1,024,902     
Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.2 209,146          136,333        
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 72,947            75,444          
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 33,172            36,066          
Fuel and power 86,508            52,713          
Outsourced job contractor 90,211            61,618          
Staff transportation 27,424            22,324          
Repair and maintenance 5,021              8,466            
Insurance 4,442              3,778            
Provision for slow moving stores and spares -                 234               
Vehicle running expenses 5,225              5,768            

-                 7,658            
Entertainment 2,591              2,784            
Telephone and postage 541                 533               
Travelling and conveyance 338                 65                 
Computer expenses 220                 52                 
Subscription 53                   73                 
Others 165                 236               
Manufacturing cost 1,718,019       1,439,047     

Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade

(Rupees in thousands)
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2024 2023
Note

Work-in-process
Opening stock 175,548          177,745          
Closing  stock (251,733)         (175,548)         

(76,186)          2,197              
Cost of goods manufactured 1,641,833       1,441,244       

Finished goods
Opening stock-in-trade 176,174          84,855            
Closing stock-in-trade (112,060)         (176,174)         

64,115            (91,319)           
1,705,948       1,349,925       

29.1 Material consumed

Opening stock-in-trade
Raw material and components 192,743          119,216          
Scrap 2,374              8,316              

195,117          127,532          
Purchases made during the year 1,098,750       1,092,487       

1,293,867       1,220,019       
Closing stock-in-trade

Raw material and components (109,467)         (192,743)         
Scrap (4,386)            (2,374)             

(113,853)         (195,117)         
1,180,014       1,024,902       

29.2

Bonus 69,215            25,801            
Medical 5,448              5,073              
Gratuity fund 6,263              4,050              
Provident fund 3,804              3,793              

84,730            38,717            
30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 30.1 90,120            62,786            
Outsourced service expenses 9,176              8,342              
Vehicle running expenses 17,808            13,991            
Corporate expenses 4,822              5,024              
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 10,040            9,329              
Loss on sale of operating fixed assets - net 138                 -                 
Entertainment 3,872              4,162              
Utilities 5,740              3,936              
Legal and professional charges 3,868              2,810              

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 84.730 million (2023: Rs. 38.717 million) in
respect of the following staff employment benefits.

(Rupees in thousands)
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2024 2023
Note

Auditor's remuneration 30.2 2,136              1,365              
Insurance 1,504              1,249              
Telephone and postage 965                 726                 
Staff transportation 1,052              881                 
Repairs and maintenance 616                 1,489              
General stores supplies 1,111              1,645              
Printing, stationery and periodicals 368                 390                 
Travelling and conveyance 902                 449                 
Donation and charities -                 519                 
Others 1,025              1,508              

155,263          120,601          

30.1

Bonus 18,457            4,927              
Medical 1,869              1,250              
Gratuity fund 1,670              1,080              
Provident fund 2,917              2,514              

24,913            9,771              
30.2 Auditor's remuneration

Statutory audit fee 918                 765                 
Out of pocket expenses 138                 40                   
Half yearly review 160                 160                 
Special audit engagement 700                 -                 
Other audit expense 220                 70                   

2,136              1,035              
31 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 31.1 24,697            19,635            
Outsourced service expenses 2,936              2,832              
Entertainment 1,876              1,769              
Vehicle running expenses 2,349              2,235              
Utilities 1,049              793                 
Insurance 467                 554                 
Export related expenses -                 81                   
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 4,134              134                 
Provision for warranty 833                 -                 
Others 343                 351                 
Outward freight 45,629            28,942            

84,313            57,325            

(Rupees in thousands)

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 24.913 million (2023: Rs. 9.771 million) in
respect of the following staff employment benefits.
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31.1

2024 2023
Note

Bonus 4,614              1,617              
Medical 284                 347                 
Gratuity fund 418                 270                 
Provident fund 909                 818                 

6,225              3,052              
32 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25.2 18,814            12,120            
Workers' Welfare Fund 7,149              4,605              

-                 1,161              
Exchange loss-net -                 23,910            

25,963            41,796            
33 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on savings accounts 9,790              7,567              
Profit on treasury bills 128,049          89,660            
Dividend income -                 153                 
Gain on equity stocks 560                 -                 
Realised gain on sale of investments 1,454              1,750              

139,853          99,130            
Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - net -                 5                     
Liability no longer payable -                 607                 
Exchange gain - net 7,683              -                 
Amortization of Government grant  -                 91                   
Reversal of warranty provision -                 1,214              
Reversal of provision for slow moving 
stores and spares 10.1 454                 -                 
Reversal of provision for slow moving 
stock-in-trade 11.1 4,288              -                 
Others 374                 54                   

12,800            1,971              
152,652          101,101          

Unrealised loss on change in fair value of listed 
equity securities

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rs. 6.225 million (2023: Rs. 3.052 million) in
respect of the following staff employment benefits.

(Rupees in thousands)
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34 FINANCE COST 

Markup on:
Running finance 62                   227                 
Long-term loan -                 40                   
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25.2 135                 148                 

197                 415                 
Bank charges and commission 290                 310                 
Finance charges on leases 5,067              4,834              

5,554              5,559              
35 TAXATION

For the year
Current - for the year 35.1 115,573          67,033            
Current - prior year (4,384)            662                 
Deferred (1,762)            (2,349)             

109,427          65,346            

35.1

Current tax liability for the year as per the Ordinance
Portion of current tax liability as per tax law, 
representing income tax under IAS 12 115,572          67,032            
Portion of current tax liability as per tax law, 
representing levy in term of requirement
of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 35.2 0.321              0.348              

Total 35.3 115,573          67,033            

35.2

35.3 The aggregate of final tax and current income tax for the year, amounting to Rs. 115.573
million represents tax liability of the company for the year calculated under the relevant
provisions of the Ordinance.

This represents portion of final tax paid as per Income Tax Ordinance ("the Ordinance"),
representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

Reconciliation between current tax charged under the Ordinance with current tax recognized in
the profit and loss account, is as follows:

(Rupees in thousands)

The provision of current tax liability for the year contains Final tax at different rates. It also
includes super tax provided at 2% under Section 4(c) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in
accordance with the new slab rates  for super tax as introduced through Finance Act 2023.
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36 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

The earnings per share as required under IAS 33: "Earnings per share" is given below:

2024 2023

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholder 240,665          136,406          
13,334            13,334            

18.05              10.23              

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

37 DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

37.1 General description

37.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in  the valuation:

2024 2023
%age %age

Discount rate -                    16.25
Expected rate of increase in salary -                    15.25

37.3

Present value of defined benefit obligation -                 103,043          
Fair value of plan assets -                 (100,855)         
Closing net asset -                 2,188              

Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 
shareholders

(Rupees in thousands)

(Rupee per share)

During the year Company voluntarily decided to terminate its gratuity policy and settle all
gratuity liabilities by making lump-sum payments to all eligible employees.

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan
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2024 2023
Note

37.4

Opening net asset -                 (458)               
Charge for the year 37.8 -                 4,449              
Remeasurement chargeable to other 
comprehensive income 37.9 -                 (1,602)             
Contribution made during the year -                 (200)               
Closing net asset -                 2,189              

37.5 Fair value of plan assets at year end

Treasury Bills -                    68,624
Mutual Funds -                    22,381
Equity Investments -                    9,557
Cash at banks -                    293

-                 100,855          
37.6 Movement in present value of defined benefit obligations 

Opening present value of defined benefit obligations -                 90,140
Current service cost for the year -                 4,523
Interest cost for the year -                 11,758
Benefits paid during the year -                 (2,796)
Remeasurement gain on obligation -                 (582)
Closing present value of defined benefit obligations -                 103,043          

37.7 Movement in fair value of plan assets 

Opening fair value of plan assets -                    90,598
Remeasurement on plan assets -                    1,020
Contributions during the year -                    200
Benefits paid during the year -                    (2,796)
Expected return on plan assets -                    11,832
Closing fair value of plan assets -                 100,854          

37.8 Charge for the year

Current service cost -                 4,523              
Interest cost -                 (74)                 
Charge for the year -                 4,449              

(Rupees in thousands)
Movement of the liability recognised in the 
statement of financial position
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2024 2023
Note

37.9 Remeasurement chargeable to other comprehensive income 

Experience adjustments -                 (582)               
-                 (582)               

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income -                 (1,020)             
-                 (1,602)             

37.10

38 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 350,092          201,752          
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6.2 47,346            45,529            
Amortization of Government grant 33 -                 (91)                 
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 33 -                 (5)                   
Finance cost 34 5,554              5,559              
Reversal of Provision for slow-moving 
stores and spares 10.1 (454)               234                 
Reversal of provision for slow-moving 
stock in trade 11.1 (4,288)            7,658              
Accrual for compensated absences 2,337              412                 
provision of warranty / (Reversal for provision)
claims and adjustment claims 26 648                 (1,214)             
Provision for employee defined benefit obligations 8,569              7,004              
Profit on savings accounts and treasury bills 33 (139,853)         (98,977)           
Unrealized loss on change in 
fair value of listed equity securities -                 1,161              
Dividend income -                 (1,903)             

269,951          167,120          
Working capital changes 39.1 132,631          6,815              

402,582          173,935          

The Company has contributory provident fund scheme for benefit of all its permanent
employees. The Fund is maintained by the Trustees and all decisions regarding investments and
distribution of income etc. are made by the Trustees independent of the Company.

(Rupees in thousands)

Company settled all its liability related to gratuity by making lum-sum payment amounting to
Rs. 105.69 million.
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39.1 Changes in working capital 

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools 4,334              2,991              
Stock-in-trade 97,669            (117,023)         
Trade debts (102,120)         147,909          
Loans and advances (23,565)          2,665              
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 368                 655                 
Other receivables 7,163              (13,160)           
Sales tax refundable -                 (12,049)           

(16,151)          11,988            
Increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables  118,945          4,709              
Sales tax payable 29,837            (9,882)             

132,631          6,815              

(Rupees in thousands)
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40 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

a)

Chief  Chief
Executive Executive

7,961       15,458  11,871       35,290    7,237       14,052  10,348       31,637    
3,582       6,956    5,344         15,882    3,257       6,324    4,657         14,238    

22,932     46,256  22,364       91,552    2,640       5,233    5,034         12,907    
2,412       4,684    3,141         10,237    2,412       4,684    4,128         11,224    

813          1,505    280            2,598      643          1,500    237            2,380      
1,200       2,400    2,161         5,761      864          1,747    1,476         4,087      
1,558       3,742    99              5,399      1,387       4,897    76              6,360      

40,458     81,001  45,260       166,719  18,440     38,437  25,956       82,833    
Total 1              2           5                8             1              2           5                8             

b)

c)

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and
Executives of the Company is as follows:

2024 2023

Directors Executives Total Directors Executives Total

(Rupees in thousands)

Managerial remuneration
House rent
Staff retirement benefits
Bonus
Medical
Utilities
Leave fare assistance

The chief executive, directors and certain executives are also provided with free use of the Company's maintained cars, household
items and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.

Aggregate amount charged in the financial statements against fee for attending meetings to six non-executive directors was Rs. 2.088
million (2023: Rs. 2.860 million).
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41 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

2024 2023

Nature of transaction Nature of Relation Basis of Relation Note

Dividend on ordinary shares
Directors and others Personnel Key management personnel 180,012        56,846          

Long term loan given
Executives Personnel Key management personnel 3,701            4,388            

Advances
Executives Personnel Key management personnel 2,681            6,085            

Sale of vehicles / equipments
Executives Personnel Key management personnel 1,646            10,403          

41.1 Year end balances 2024 2023

Receivable from a related party
Long term loan 8.1 & 8.2             3,701             4,388 
Advances 8.2             2,681             6,085 

            6,382            10,473 

41.2

The related parties of the Company comprise directors, key management personnel retirement benefit plans and company with common directorship.
Transactions with related parties in the financial statements are as follows:

(Rupees in thousands)

(Rupees in thousands)

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions except certain executives are entitled to obtain cars at
Company's car executive scheme.
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               (Rupees in thousands)
June 30, 2024
    Lease liabilities 22               8,731              5,181        13,912                           -         13,912 
    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                          978             978 
    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                  282,509     282,509 
    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                       9,689          9,689 

              8,731              5,181        13,912                293,176     307,088 
June 30, 2023
    Lease liabilities 22            20,197            13,768        33,965                           -         33,965 
    Long-term deposits 23                     -                       -                   -                       1,204          1,204 
    Trade and other payables 25                     -                       -                   -                  155,288     155,288 
    Unclaimed dividend                     -                       -                   -                       8,184          8,184 

           20,197            13,768        33,965                164,678     198,643 

Less than one 
year

One to five 
years

Total
Note

INTEREST / MARK-UP / PROFIT 
BEARING NON-INTEREST 

BEARING
TOTAL
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# Of Shareholders Total Shares Held
687 1 to 100 27,568
429 101 to 500 115,070
109 501 to 1000 80,893
93 1001 to 5000 212,591
17 5001 to 10000 120,419
6 10001 to 15000 70,413
4 15001 to 20000 69,100
2 20001 to 25000 45,700
1 30001 to 35000 30,300
1 40001 to 45000 44,402
1 45001 to 50000 45,310
1 50001 to 55000 55,000
1 75001 to 80000 77,886
2 95001 to 100000 196,593
1 125001 to 130000 129,400
1 145001 to 150000 145,562
1 285001 to 290000 287,500
2 340001 to 345000 686,693
1 435001 to 440000 437,201
1 480001 to 485000 482,083
1 640001 to 645000 645,000
1 695001 to 700000 700,000
1 795001 to 800000 800,000
1 995001 to 1000000 1,000,000
1 1280001 to 1285000 1,282,825
1 1325001 to 1330000 1,328,360
1 1570001 to 1575000 1,571,971
1 2645001 to 2650000 2,646,410

1369 13,334,250

BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding

As at June 30, 2024
Shareholdings'Slab
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Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
RAZAK BENGALI 1                      1,571,971               11.79              
MUHAMMAD IRFAN GHANI 1                      4,842                       0.04                
GUL BANO RAZAK 1                      482,083                  3.62                
KAUSAR IRFAN 1                      1,000,000               7.50                
MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 1                      2,646,410               19.85              
MEHTAB BIBI 1                      437,201                  3.28                
SABA NADEEM 1                      3,000                       0.02                
IRFAN AHMED QURESHI 1                      500                          0.00                
MUHAMMAD JAVED 1                      500                          0.00                
SYED ZUBAIR AHMAD SHAH 1                      500                          0.00                
ANIS WAHAB ZUBERI 1                      500                          0.00                

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties -                   -                           -                  

NIT 1                      1,328,360               9.96                

Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Institutions. 2                      1,468                       0.01                

Insurance Companies 1                      341,693                  2.56                

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 10                    118,328                  0.89                

General Public
a. Local 1,163               3,468,249               26.01              

b. Foreign 145                  29,619                    0.22                
Foreign Companies -                   -                           -                  
Others 36                    1,899,026               14.24              

Totals 1,369              13,334,250            100.00           

Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage

RAZAK BENGALI 1,571,971               11.79              
MUHAMMAD SIDDIQUE MISRI 2,646,410               19.85              

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT JUNE30,2024
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
  

  
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 44th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders
of Baluchistan Wheels Limited will be held on Saturday, September 21, 2024 at 11:30 A.M. at the 
Registered Office of the Company, Main RCD Highway, Hub Chowki, District Lasbella, 
Baluchistan, to transact the following business :- 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To confirm the minutes of the 43rd Annual General Meeting held on September 23, 
2023. 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
Reports thereon and Chairman’s Review Report. 

3. To consider and approve payment of final cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 (30%) per share for
the year ended June 30, 2024 as recommended by the Board of Directors. This is in 
addition to interim dividends already paid at Rs. 10 (100%) per share. 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the company for the year ending June 30, 2025 and fix 
their remuneration. 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

5. To transact any other business with permission of the Chairman. 
 

 
        BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
             
 
 
                                                                                                      Muhammad Asad Saeed                   
                             Company Secretary 
Karachi: August 30, 2024 
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NOTES: 
 
1.  Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from September 13, 2024 to 
September 21, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of the 
Company’s Shares Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar (Services) Ltd., CDC house, 99-B, 
Block B, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan, by the close of business on
September 12, 2024, will be considered in time to determine the above mentioned 
entitlement. 

 
2. For Attending the Meeting: 

i. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub-account holder and / or the person whose 
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC, or original  
passport at the time of attending the meeting. 

ii. Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their
   particulars, ID number and account number in Central Depository System (CDS). 
 

3. Proxy: 
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint any other 
member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must be 
received at the Head Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed with the Notice of 
Meeting being sent to the members. 
 

4. Submission of CNIC/NTN(Mandatory): 
Individual members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC to the 
Company/Share Registrar, are once again requested to send their CNIC(Copy) at the earliest 
directly to Company’s Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar (Services) Limited.
Corporate Entities also requested to provide their NTN. Please also give Folio with the copy 
of CNIC/NTN detail.  
 

5. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (Mandatory): 
a. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and 

Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, every listed company is required 
to ensure that the cash dividends to its shareholders shall be paid through electronic mode 
only directly into their bank accounts designated by the entitled shareholders instead of 
issuing physical dividend warrants. Therefore, shareholders are requested to provide the 
details of their Bank mandate specifying: (i) Title of account, (ii) Account number (iii) IBAN 
number (iv) Bank name and (v) Branch name, code and address to the Company Share 
Registrar. Those share- holders who hold shares with participants / Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the same to their concerned participant 
/ CDC. 

b. Please note that as per Section 243 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017, listed Companies are 
entitled to withhold payment of dividend, if necessary information is not provided by the 
shareholders. 
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a. For the convenience of shareholders, e-Dividend Mandate Form is available on Company's

website http:// www.bwheels.com 
b. Further, the information regarding gross dividend, tax/zakat deduction and net amount of 

dividend will be provided through the centralized cash dividend register, therefore, 
Shareholders should register themselves to CDC’s e-service portal. 

 
4. Un-claimed/Un-paid Dividends: 

The shareholders who, by any reasons, could not claim their dividends are advised to 
contact our Share Registrar, M/s CDC Share Registrar (Services) Ltd., to collect /inquire 
about their unclaimed/unpaid dividends. 

 
5.  Deposit of Physical Shares into Central Depository: 

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, listed companies are required to replace 
existing physical shares issued by them into book-entry form. Further, SECP vide its letter 
dated March 26, 2021 has advised to comply with Section 72 of the Act and encourage 
shareholders to convert their shares in book-entry form as soon as possible. This will 
facilitate the shareholders in many ways, including safe custody and sales of shares any time 
they want. 
 

6. Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend (Mandatory): 
The rate of deduction of income tax on dividend payments will be made as per section 150 
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act, 2024. 
 

7. Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website: 
The Financial statement of the company for the year ended June 30, 2024, along with the 
reports have been placed on the website of the company “www.bwheels.com” which can be 
downloaded from the QR enable Code. 
 

8. Participation through video conferencing facility: 
The shareholders who are interested in attending the Meeting through video conference are 
requested to get themselves registered by sending their particulars at the designated e-mail 
address (bwlfin@cyber.net.pk) not less than 5 days before the date of the meeting along 
with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility. 

 
9. Change of Address(If Any): 
      Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their addresses immediately to the            
 Company’s Share Registrar. 
 
NOTE: Transport will be provided to members from the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Building to attend the meeting. Departure from the Pakistan Stock Exchange Building 
will be at 10:00 am. 
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CODE OF CONDUCT / STATEMENT OF ETHICS
AND BUSINESS PARACTICES
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Disc Wheels for Cars, Vans, 
Pick-ups and 4x4s

Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Ltd.

Indus Motor Co. Ltd.

Lucky Motors Co. Ltd

Disc Wheels for 
Agricultural Tractors

Millat Tractors Ltd.

Al-Ghazi Tractor Ltd.

Ghandhara Industries Ltd.

Fuso Master Motors (Pvt.) Ltd.

Hinopak Motors Ltd.

Ghandhara AutoMobiles Ltd.

Disc Wheels for 
Commercial Vehicles



BALUCHISTAN WHEELS LIMITED
Manufacturers of  Automotive Wheels in Pakistanwww.bwheels.com

Factory & Registered Office Main RCD Highway, Hub 
Chowki, Lasbella Baluchistan Telephone # : (0853)-

363426, 363428 Fax # : (0853)- 35688574
www.bwheels.com


